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CDTF. Commercial Bank

1. To Our Shareholders

1-1. Year 2009 Business Report

1-1-1 Financial Environment

In retrospect of year 2009, as impacted by global financial tsunami which caused shrinking of intrinsic demand and
sudden reducing of world trade, counties around the world, one after another, undertook applicable monetary and fiscal
policies to spur economic growth. Asian developing countries with their retained expanding momentum, together
with China and India’s leading economic performance, ascribed to aggressive expansion of internal demanding, and
other countries’ stable or mild rebound as well, played a role of locomotion to draw global economic toward recovery
and therefore marked a level of minus 0.8% in global economic growth rate. For Taiwan, as supported by observable
economic stimuli adopted by Taiwan government in due course to urge fluent liquidity, domestic economy was marching
in the procession to firm recovery. “Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, ROC”
published year 2009 round domestic economic growth rate in GDP as minus 1.87%.

In prospect of the coming year, large-scale recovery stimuli enforced by major economic entities have brought significant
effectiveness. U.S. economy begins to rally in the procession to recovery. Euro Zone’s comprehensive economic
indicators along with manufacturing, servicing and retailing confidence indexes reveal positive signals for economic
growth. Japan’s latest reports regarding leading indictors and consumer confidence indexes also demonstrate progress
in recovery. Furthermore, emerging market of China and India withholds reasonably health growth pattern. All of
these affirmative signals prove real growth after financial crisis and is expected to help restore energy of recovery.
Consequently, IMF estimates global economic growth rate will fall at 3.9%. For domestic economy, following global
economic recovery pattern, Taiwan’s exports are also expected to enhance progressively which should provide sure
support to economic growth. Besides, fundamental economic factors in increasingly stable status restore consumer
spending confidence and improve public investment as well. It is belived that domestic economy will characterize
both external and internal demanding in increasing heating patterns. “Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and
Statistics, Executive Yuan, ROC” estimates year 2010 growth rate in GDP to be 4.72%. As regards domestic interest
rate, with solid rebound and capital demand, Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan) is likely to take up a neutral
monetary policy as opposed to introduce lower interest rate strategy with view to stabilize consuming price and avoid
distorting reasonable capital allocation by low interest rate. For foreign exchange rate, Central Bank of the Republic of
China (Taiwan) is expected to maintain and provide strong uphold to TWD exchange rate corresponding to benefit-taking
of export expansion and possible larger capital inflow after signing of ECFA. Exchange rate for TWD is likely to be in low
possibility of huge fluctuation in the short term. Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan) shall continue its long-
standing position to maintain a dynamic and steady foreign exchange rate policy in order to shun vehement swing.

1-1-2. Organization Development

With effect from Apr 01, 2009, we renamed “NPL Management Center” as “Risk Management Center” designated to take
in charge of designing, monitoring, controlling risk management systems and tracing non-performing loans.



] To Our Shareholders

1-1-3. Year 2009 Business Plans and Strategies Performance
1-1-3-1. Main Achievements

» Established “Corporate Banking Finance Team” exclusively to enforce corporate loans and enlarge corporate banking
market share.

e Continually built up electronized P.R. system to simplify and streamline P.R. management.

¢ Introduced consuming debit function of ATM card to enhance faithfulness of cardholder.

e |ssued life-enjoy Visa Paywave platinum credit card and Visa Free-form credit card to develop potential higher
spending consumer segment and extend various special offers of “Beijing 2008 Olympic Games” VISA theme
card.

e Set up risk-management framework, assessment function and operational risk loss database to align with
implementation of BASEL II.

1-1-3-2. Budget Performance

As of Dec 31, 2009, our deposits balance with sum of TWD100.9 billion (excluding deposits from banks) increased by
TWD3.4 billion compared to previous year; our loans balance with sum of TWD76.4 billion decreased by TWD3 billion
compared to previous year. We would urge ourselves to achieve better quality and quantity structure between deposits
and loans and widen fee income.

Main business budget performances are reported as follows:

¢ Final account of average deposits balance is TWD95.6 billion, achieved 99% budgeting goal of TWD97 billion.
* Final account of average loans balance is TWD74.7 billion, achieved 93% budgeting goal of TWD80 billion.
¢ Final account of trust assets balance is TWD3.83 billion, achieved 137% budgeting goal of TWD2.8 billion.

1-1-3-3. Analysis of Income Status and Profitability

Our year 2009 earning after income tax figured as TWD31.01 million turned into EPS as TWD0.08. Our BIS ratio
maintained a sound level of 11.37% and net value of per share stood at TWD12.72. Further, we raised our NPL
coverage ratio to 54.16% as of Dec 31, 2009 from 47.87% as of Dec 31, 2008 to strengthen assets quality. Meanwhile,
overdue ratio decreased to 2.13% as of Dec 31, 2009 from 2.68% as of Dec 31, 2008. We would constant improve
business effectiveness and risk control to boost competitive edge.

1-1-3-4. Research and Development

Responding to rapid change of international and domestic economic environments and demands of baking business, our
H.O. departments compiled diverse analyses and reports regarding financial situations, banking business development
and industrial insight and tendency periodically or non-periodically. Such analyses and reports would circulate to our
staff for reference through our electronic official document system.
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CDTF. Commercial Bank

1-2. Year 2010 Business Plans Qutline

The Bank has adhered to the never-changing spirit of “value our customer”. Driven by the need of customer, we
persistently convert customers’ appeals into key concerns of service and operational process improvement, meanwhile
strengthen financial structure and arrange feasible assets allotment. Main business plans are outlined as follows.

1-2-1. Business Operational Policy

* To enhance SME loans and expand corporate banking business aggressively.

* Move to re-open Xinzhu branch and continually adjust and deploy branch channels.

e To set up comprehensive risk management to strengthen asset quality in line with internal IT process reform.

* To enhance functions of electronic transactions platform and its transaction volume to provide full-range service value
and lower repeated manpower effort.

e To streamline operational procedure to discharge back office manpower and strengthen proficiency training to
accelerate front-desk sales jobs reassignment

e To fulfill budgeting target and build up cost allocation system to increase profitability.

e To actively participate regional activities for public welfare to grasp niche of community banking.

1-2-2. Business Target
1-2-2-1 Main budgeting Targets

e Deposits: set average deposits budgeting balance as TWD102.1 billion, increased by TWD6.5 billion compared to
previous year budget at a growth rate of 6.82%.

e L oans: set average loans budgeting balance as TWD80 billion, increased by TWD5.3 billion compared to previous year
budget at a growth rate of 7.07%.

e Wealth management (trust asset): set trust asset budgeting balance as TWD5 billion, increased by TWD1.17 billion
compared to previous year budget at a growth rate of 30.38%.

1-2-2-2. Schemed Targets

* To segment marketing strategy and provide SME with wide-array product lines and safe, effective service procedure.

¢ To adjust and redeploy branch channels gradually to increase profitability and market share.

e To improve risk management methodology to reach an optimal point between profit gain and risk control.

¢ To install electronic banking services and deepen integration of e-banking cash flows to help individual and corporate
reach practicable cash management.

* To enhance marketing proficiency training and sales skills to build up customer-driven service culture.

¢ To intensify budgeting control of business expense to lower operational cost effectively.

* To commit to corporate social responsibility to create better corporate value.
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1-3. Long-term Development Strategy

e To lift higher weight of current deposits, lower capital cost and increase profitability.

e To adjust loans structure, expand business scale of SME and individual loans.

¢ To develop wealth management, improve fee income ratio and diversify earnings source.

e To improve loans asset quality, lower over-due loans and raise NPL coverage ratio.

* To construct risk management methodology and strengthen risk management operating effect.

e To continue deploy service locations to enlarge value of branch channels

¢ To build up and integrate management information system and electronic information platform to maximize IT
synergy.

e To promote internet banking transactions and provide time and location limit-free financial services.

* To continue expanding scale of business in line with market tendency and momentum to achieve well-sound and
proficiency position of community bank.

1-4. Impact of Competitive, Regulative and Banking Environments

With regard to development of domestic financial market, competitions in financial institutions are increasingly
vehement as influencing through factors of service channels overran by financial holdings and foreign banks,
product lines blurred by deregulation, and wealth management market took share by life insurance company and
security house. It is believed that financial institutions would undertake continue reform to improve competitive
ability under the supervision of “Financial Supervisory Commission, ROC (FSC)”. Meanwhile, FSC announced
that all deposit holders including foreign exchange deposit will be fully covered by Central Deposit Insurance
Corp. till end of year 2010. Such policy brings strong support for stabilizing banking business and restoring
market confidence. Further, ease of cross-strait policy and sign-up of MOU would bring new opportunity for higher
possibility of cooperative cross strait.

Considering rapid change of industrial tendency and financial environment, The Bank shall uphold its long-
standing management policy of stable development by emphasizing internal control and risk management,
requesting obedience of law and regulation and concept of risk control. Business expansion will base on the
principle of regional rooting and steady growth following increasing financial market openness and modification
of regulation. Also, new products generation and combination will keep developing together with service quality
enhancement so as to satisfy needs for various industries and customers on all of which business transform and
lasting competitive edge could rely.
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1-5. Corporate Rating

Rating
Category Rating Agent Released Date
Long-term Short-term
Taiwan Ratings
Local Corporation twBBB+ twA-2 Stable Dec 29, 2009

Outlook for 2010, The Bank dedicates itself to continually cultivating varied business aspects at a steady pace and
endeavoring for better customer services by which shall lead to advance of business scale, service level, and benefit
to shareholders. On the whole, we would like to express our earnest appreciations to our shareholders, directors,
supervisors, and the elite in all fields. All our staff would sustain the enthusiasm to realize service motto of “all
customers are equal matter and deserve best services”. We look forward to obtaining continuous support and advice
from all of you.

Lam—, Gﬁmn-_ﬁe

Chairman Chun-Tse Liao

6\



@ Corporate Profile

Annual Report 2009 7



‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

2. Corporate Profile

2-1. Bank Features

Bank Name COTA Commercial Bank, Ltd.
Chairman Chun-Tse Liao
President Chin-Ting Chang

Date of Business

Registration Jan. 1, 1999

Date of Inauguration  Jan. 1, 1999

Location of No.32-1, Gongyuan Road, Central District,
Head Office Taichung City 400, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Number of

Employee st

Paid-in Capital TWD3,680,451,110

Capital Shares Common Stock in 368,045,111 Shares

2-2. Historical Highlights

COTA Bank was formerly named “Liability Taichung Third Credit Cooperative”. Founded in 1915, we have
consistently conveyed the corporate philosophy featuring, well-sustained to combat in the financial climate
characterized by severe competition, as “Briskness, Innovation, Cordiality and Service”. In accordance with
the promulgation of “Regulations and Criteria Governing Reorganization of Credit Cooperative into Commercial
Banks”, COTA Bank started the reorganization task and launched reorganization in Dec. 1995. On Jul. 27,
1998, COTA Bank was officially approved by Ministry of Finance to be transformed into “COTA Commercial
Bank”.

In 2005, COTA Bank requested Fengyuan Credit Cooperative to consider a merge proposal for mutual
benefits to enhance competitive capacity by expanding business scale. After sincere bilateral negotiation
and consideration, COTA Bank decided to wholly acquire Fengyuan Credit Cooperative. Approved by
shareholders’ meeting of both parties, Fengyuan Credit Cooperative was formally merged with COTA Bank on
Jan. 1, 2006.

Outlook for the future, COTA Bank is determined to become a full-array commercial bank in spite of quick-
changing financial market. Under the support of shareholders and members of board, and the endeavor of all
staffs, we are committed to providing all-aspect services for our customers by constant business growth, scale
expansion, and product diversification.

8\
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3. Corporate Governance

3-1. Organization

3-1-1. Organization Chart
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The Board of Directors

~

NI

General Administration
Department
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Credit

Board of Supervisors Management Dept.

Standing Supervisors

Business Dept.

Board of Directors J International Banking
(Board of Managing Directors) J Department

Offshore Banking

Chairman Department
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Committees

Accounting Office

President
IT Management

Office
Senior Executive

Vice President

Risk Management
Center

Various Committees

Consumer
Banking Center

SME
Banking Center

Credit Card
Center

Wealth
Management Center

Banking Dept.

Branch Banks
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3-1-2. Major Business of Each Division

3-1-2-1. Secretariat to the Board of Directors

Taking charge of such key tasks of the Board of
the Directors and official seal keeping, bank affairs,
corporate governance, convening of shareholders’
meeting, the Board of the directors and related meetings,
election for director and supervisor, etc.

3-1-2-2. General Administration Department

Taking charge of Bank’s official seals, documentation,
construction and repair, procurement, property control,
public relations, general affairs, personnel affairs,
organization management, legal affairs and affairs not
designed to other departments.

3-1-2-3. Credit Management Department

Taking charge of planning, review, recheck of all loan
affairs of Bank, credit investigation, promotion and
management for corporate baking, etc.

3-1-2-4. Business Department

Taking charge of the Bank’s deposits, remittance,
cashier’s affairs, warehousing, custody, agency, trust and
investment related planning, business and management.

3-1-2-5. International Banking Department

Taking charge of the Bank’s foreign currency funds
management and foreign exchange related operation,
planning, administration and promotion.

3-1-2-6. Offshore Banking Branch

Taking charge of the Offshore Banking related operation,
management and investment.

3-1-2-7. Audit Office
Taking charge of auditing over Bank’s business, accounting,
financing, bank affairs and inventory, etc.

3-1-2-8. Accounting Office

Taking charge of bank’s accounting, statistics and annual
revenues calculation.

3 Corporate Governance

3-1-2-9. IT Management Office
Taking charge of the Bank’s ITs related planning
automation, operation and management.

3-1-2-10. Banking Department

Engaging in the commercial bank services (Approved
by Central Bank of R.0.C.) as well as trust banking
Services.

3-1-2-11. Trusts Department

Taking charge of planning, promotion, and management
of the Trust banking related affairs.

3-1-2-12. Risk Management Center

Taking charge of formulation and revise for risk
management policies, plan and design for risk
management system, establishment and integration for
risk management guidelines, monitoring the performance
and others; and the Bank’s non-performing loans related
planning, tracing and management.

3-1-2-13. Consumer Banking Center

Taking charge of planning, review, dunning on overdue
receivables, credit investigation, recheck of all loan
affairs of the consumer and promote financial products.

3-1-2-14. SME Banking Center

Taking charge of planning, review, dunning on overdue
receivables, credit investigation, recheck of all loan
affairs of the SME and promote financial products.

3-1-2-15. Credit Card Center
Taking charge of Bank’s Credit card affairs related
planning, promotion and management.

3-1-2-16. Wealth Management Center

Taking charge of planning, promotion, training of Wealth
Management and Non-Wealth Management for selling
financial commodity.
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3-2. Major Information of Directors, Supervisors, Executives and Principal

Officers.

3-2-1. List of Directors and Supervisors

Elected
Date

Elected

Shares Owned

No. of

Current
Shares Owni

Education & Key Work Experience

As of Dec 31, 2009, Shares Held (%)

Current Positions Held in this or other
company

Chairman

Managing
Director

Managing

Director

Managing
Director

Managing
(Independent)
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chun-Tse
Liao

Ying-Che

Chang

Yao-Ting Li

Dong-Po Xie

Yen-Chun
Wang

Chan-Wen Lin

Pi-Jung Hsieh

Song-Yue
Liao

Ying-Chieh
Lai

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jant,
1999

Jan i,
2002

Jan i,
1999

Jan 1,
2002

Jun 20,
2008

Jan i,
1999

Jant,
1999

May 25,
2005

Jant,
1999

Shares

4,648,209

1,309,842

1,685,193

1,336,612

1,641,562

1,890,645

3,174,423

1,022,910

1.3071

0.3683

0.4458

0.3759

0.4335

0.5317

0.8927

0.2877

Shares

4,810,896

1,355,686

1,640,674

1,403,393

1,595,516

1,880,429

4,202,055

1,058,711

1.3071

0.3683

0.4458

0.3813

0.4335

0.5109

1.1417

0.2877

11,427

19,402

217,725

196,581

1,355,059

45,715

314,949

0.0031

0.0053

0.0592

0.0534

0.3682

0.0124

0.0856

The Society for Professional Management, UK
Diploma in Professional Management
(Business Management Dr. in P.LU.) President,
Senior Executive Vice President and Chairman
of the board of Liability Taichung Third Credit
Cooperative, Director of TACB

Supervisor of FDU Personal Insurance Agent
Co., Ltd.

Department of International Trade, Feng Chia
University,

Senior Executive Vice President of COTA Bank
President of COTA Bank

National Taichung Institute of Technology,
Chairman of Yuan Feng Dyeing & Weaving
Co., Ltd.,

Managing director & President of Fu Shan
Dyeing & Weaving Co., Ltd.

Post graduate of University of California in U.S.A.,
The Hong Kong College of Medicine,
Representative of Liang Yow Biotechnology Inc.,
Chairman of Magnistar International corp.,
Director of Feng Tzer Electronics Co., Ltd.

National Taiwan University Graduate Institute
of Electrical Engineering

Director of Tai Chiun Technology Co., Ltd.
Director of China hsiu Tzu Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Wei Hsin Co., Ltd.

National Taichung Institute of Technology,
President of Liability Taichung Third Credit
Cooperative

Director of FDU Personal Insurance Agent Co.,
Ltd.

Taichung Industrial High School, Certification
Examinations for Architect, Ministry of
Examination, Engineer of Taiwan Railway
Electrical Engineering Department.

Hosei University of Tokyo, Japan
Chairman of Chuan Cheng Hat Co., Ltd.

Murakami Youth School,

Certificate of Administration management in
Japan,

President of Yu Li De Consultant Co., Ltd.

Chairman of COTA Bank Insurance Broker
Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Cheng Shing Tai
Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Director of Yen Sheng Broadcasting Station
Director of Tien Sheng Broadcasting Station
Directors of Sicame Commercial Affairs Hotel Inc.
Directors of Tung Kai An Leisure Development Inc.

Chairman of United Integrated Services Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Unimens Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Director of Han Tai Investment Co., Ltd.
Director of Jong ching Investment Co., Ltd.
Director of Shin Cheng Investment Co., Ltd.
Director of Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd.

Architect of Hsieh Pi-jung Architectural Office
Director of Ju Hsing International Co., Ltd.
Director of Chung Hui Investment Co., Ltd.
Director of Tseng Hsin Construction &
Development Co., Ltd.

Director of Chung Hua Plastics Plywood
Industrial Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Chuan Cheng Hat Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Jepana Enterprise Co. Ltd.
Director of New Zhung Zhuang Investment
Co. Ltd., Director of CCH Plus Inc.
Director of CCH investment Inc.,
Supervisor of Yen Sign International
Enterprise Co., Ltd.,

Supervisor of Opus High Technology
Corporation

Chairman of Third Credit Cooperative
educational foundation
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3 Corporate Governance

Shares
Held under
Surrogate A/C

Shares Owned by
Spouses and

Minor children Current Positions Held in this or other

Education & Key Work Experience

company

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Standing
Supervisor

Supervisor

Supervisor

Supervisor

Supervisor

Xian-De Lai

Chun-Chuan
Wang

Guo-Zhou
Chen

Mu-Chuan
Huang

Po-Yao
Chi

Kung-Cheng
Lin

Lien-Kui
Wang

Dhe-Chin
Lai

Yong-Zhi
Wang

Guo-Zhao
Xiao

Zhuang-Tai
Wang

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

May 25,
2005

Jan 1
1999

May 25,
2005

Jant,
2002

Jun 20,
2008

Jun 20,
2008

Jan i,
2002

Jan i,
2002

May 25,
2005

May 25,
2005

May 25,
2005

1,182,904

836,740

1,758,858

1,651,790

1,499,152

1,246,360

1,181,866

1,169,987

2,956,053

1,040,744

0.3327

0.2353

0.4946

0.4645

0.4216

0.3505

0.3324

0.3290

0.8313

0.2927

1,224,305

866,025

1,820,418

1,709,602

1,051,622

1,289,982

1,223,231

1,302,629

3,159,514

1,337,172

0.3327

0.2353

0.4946

0.4645

0.4216

0.3505

0.3324

0.3539

0.8585

0.3633

68,574

57,658

399

57,145

34,286

1,140

0.0186

0.0157

0.0001

0.0155

0.0093

0.0003

National Chung Hsing University Department of
Public Finance and Taxation,
President of Tung Yang Business Co., LTD.

Department of English, Tamkang University,
President of COTA Bank

Nan Ying Vocational High School of Business
& Technology

Supervisor of Yeh-Chiang Technology Corp.
Supervisor of Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.

Shinmin Economics and Commercial Senior
high school,
Senior Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Soochow University School Director of Cheng
Loong Corporation TaiChung Factory

National Chengchi University Department of
Public Finance and Taxation

PHD of Department of Economy in lowa State
University U.S.A

Chairman of Department of Public Finance

& Taxation in National Taichung Institute of
Technology

Chairman of Department of Public Finance in
Feng Chia University

Associate professor and Chairman of
Department of Financial Management in
Hsiuping Institute of Technology

Civic Education and Leadership, National
Taiwan Normal University, Executive vice
President of Liability Taichung Third Credit
Cooperative,

Senior Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Shin Min Economics and Commercial Senior
high school

Executive vice President of Liability Taichung
Third Credit Cooperative, Special Assistant of
COTA Bank

Direct of FDU Non-Life Insurance Agent Co., Ltd.

Nanya Institute of Technology, Director of
Sheng Ho Securities(IBTS) Company

University of South California, USA,
Supervisor of Taiwan Foundation Global
Technology Co. Ltd.

Chairman of Hong Cheng Construction Co., Ltd.

Shu-Te Institute of Technology,

Supervisor of Forever Coampion Shoes Co.,
Ltd.

Hui Hsin Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Director of Tai Ho Cement Industry Corp.

Chairman of Tung Yang Investment Co., Ltd.,
Chairman of Tung Yang Business Co., Ltd.,
Director of Yuan .Sheng Plastic Inc.,
Representative of Jazzy Industrial Co., Ltd.,
Managing Director of Taiwan Flour Mills
Associate

Director-General of Taiwan Barley Products
Industry Association,

Director of China Grain Products Research
and Development Institute,

Supervisor of Taiwan Grains and Feeds
Development Foundation

Director of Nan Hai toy Co., Ltd.
Representative of Peng Chen Corp.
Director of Sino-American Silicon Products
Inc.

Managing Director of Shan Fu Corrugated
Carton Co., Ltd.

Director of Ming Foong Plastic Co., Ltd.
Director of Cheng Loong Corporation Miaoli
Factory

Associate Professor of Department of Public
Finance and Taxation in National Taipei
University

Chairman of Wang Jiang Property Co. Ltd
Director of Kun Ting Real Estate Agencues
Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Zhuang-Tai Wang Lane
Administration office

Annual Report 2009
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As of Dec 31, 2009

Directors or Supervisors shall meet one of the following
professional requirements, together with at least five years work

Independent status (Note)

experience.
] A judge, public
An instructor or
higher up in a prosecutor, atiorney,
department of BEUIEELLE Having work umoer of
con?merce law, apcountai, or ofer [ eriengce inthe e
finance accduntiﬁ FILESEE €] areg of commerce mdependent
or othér academig ' tecmical specialit law, finance or ' d|rectqr
department related 1D TS sz accyounting or E o pub|l|c
national examination ; ’ companies.
to company otherwise necessary
business in a public Tl s i A for company
or private junior g ceﬁificate in & business
college, college, or professional capacity .
U ni,v orsit ’ that is necessary for
Y. company business.
Chairman Chun-Tse Liao \ \ \ \ v \ v v V
Managing Director Ying-Che Chang V V V V V V V \
Managing Director Dong-Po Xie v v v v v v v v
Managing Director Yao-Ting Li V V V V V V V V
Managing Director !
(Independen) Yen-Chun Wang V v V v v v v v Vv
Director Chan-Wen Lin V V V V % V V \
Director Ying-Chieh Lai v Vv Vv v Vv v v Vv
Director Pi-Jung Hsieh V % V V V V V V
Director Song-Yue Liao v v v v v v v V
Director Chun-Chuan Wang V V V V V V V V V
Director Guo-Zhou Chen v v v v V V V V
Director Xian-De Lai V V V V V v V V
Director Mu-Chuan Huang Vv Vv Vv v Vv v v v v
Indaperdent Kung-Cheng Lin v v Viviviv]iv|v|iv|v]|Hv]|v
Independent Po-Yao Chi : : v vIiviviv]iv]iviv]iv vy
ety Lien-Kui W v v viv|iv|iviv|v]v]|y
Supervisor ten-Rurang ’ ’ ’
Supervisor Dhe-Chin Lai Vv V v V Vv V V Vv v
Supervisor Yong-Zhi Wang V V V V V V V Vv V
Supervisor Guo-Zhao Xiao Vv v v V Vv v V Vv v
Supervisor Zhuang-Tai Wang V V V V V Vv V V V V
Note:

During 2 years before being elected or the office term, directors or supervisors who meet the following conditions shall mark with “V”in correspondent boxes.

1. Neither employees of Bank nor its affiliates.

2. Neither a director/supervisor of Bank nor its affiliates, unless the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, or any subsidiary in which the company holds, directly or indirectly,
more than 50% of the voting shares.

3. Not an individual shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person spouse, minor children, or held under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total outstanding
shares of the company or ranks among the top ten shareholders who are natural persons in terms of the share volume held.

4. Not a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the fifth degree of kinship, of any of the persons in the preceding three subparagraphs.

5. Not directors, supervisors, or employees of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total outstanding shares of the Bank or ranks among the top 5 corporate shareholders in the terms of
share volume held.

6. Not directors, supervisors, or executive officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more shares of a specific company or institution and who also has financial or business dealings with the company.

7. Not a professional, or owner, partner, director, supervisor, or executive officer and the spouse thereof of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that provides commercial, legal, financial,
accounting or consulting services to the Bank or to any affiliates.

8. Not a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship within directors.

9. Not any of the circumstances in the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act.

10. Not elected in the capacity of a government agency, a juristic person, or a representative thereof, as provided in the Article 27 of the Company Act.
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3-2-2. List of Executives and Principal Officers

President

Chief Auditor

Senior Executive
Vice President

Senior Executive
Vice President

Executive Vice
President

Executive Vice
President

Executive Vice
President

Executive Vice
President

Executive Vice
President

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager

Department General
Manager
Chief Secretary

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager

Department
General Manager
Department
General Manager
Project Manager
Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Chin-Ting Chang

Shih-Chien Chin

Jung-Hsien Chiu

Chih-Sheng Hsiao

Yun-Ching Wang
Hsin-De Chang
Chang-Lu Liu
Tai-An Chen
Ho-Shun Chang
A-Kuai Chen
Chiu-Yun Huang
Wei-Bin Lin
Huan-Mou Cheng

Jui-Sen Liao

Kuang-Hsiung
Huang

Chien-Cheng Hsu
Chih-Hung Huang

Hung-Tsang
Chiang

Ling-Chen Ting
Chang-Chieh Lin
Shun-Hsien Weng
Mao-Sheng Huang

Pi-Li Hsu

Date of

Inauguration

Oct 1, 2008

Oct 15, 2009

Jan 1, 2004

Oct 1, 2008

Jan 1, 2004
Oct 1, 2008
Oct 1, 2008
Oct 1, 2008
Oct 1, 2008
Feb 21, 2000
Jan 1, 2006
Mar 16, 2005
Sep 15, 2008
Sep 15,2008
Mar 3, 2006
Mar 3, 2006

Oct 15, 2009

Jan 1, 2006

Jun 25, 2009
Oct 15, 2009
Jan 1, 2006
Sep 15, 2008

Jul't, 2007

No. of
Shares

1,426,433

194,904

767,975

445,682

247875

92,855

68,994

439,291

162,231

242,946

36,675

47,021

169,612

76,890

171,580

309,410

185,937

94,678

302,126

21,463

202,012

87,702

292,672

0.39

0.05

0.21

0.12

0.07

0.03

0.02

0.12

0.04

0.07

0.01

0.01

0.04

0.02

0.05

0.08

0.05

0.03

0.08

0.01

0.05

0.02

0.08

11,243

130,987

65,561

160,008

13,464

2,399

80,003

13,941

5,712

11,427

1,140

224,389

54,713

114,291

86,472

23,085

196,581

Shares Owned
Shares Owned | by Spouses and
Minors

0.00

0.04

0.02

0.04

0.00

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.06

0.01

0.03

0.02

0.01

Shares Held

under Surrogate

AIC

Shares

As of Dec 31, 2009,

Education & Key Past Positions

NCHU's Continuing Education School, EMBA,
Senior Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Department of Applied Math., University of North Texas, USA,
Business Department Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Department of Industrial and Information Management, National Cheng
Kung University, Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Department of Public Finance and Taxation Feng Chia University,
Credit Management Department Executive Vice President of COTA Bank

Master in Finance, National Chung Hsing University,
[T Management Office Chief Secretary of COTA Bank

Department of Accounting, Chien Kuo College of Commerce, Taichung
Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Tsao Tun Vocational School, Nanmen Branch General Manager of COTA
Bank

Ming Te Home Economics and Commercial Senior High School, Situn
Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Feng-Yuan Commercial & Vocational High School, Banking Department
General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Science, The National Open University, Commissioner of
COTA Bank

Department of Finance, R.0.C. Military Academy, Credit Management
Department Project Manager of COTA Bank

Graduate School of Management, University of California at Riverside,
Assistant Vice President of Bank Sinopac

National Open College of Continuing Education Affiliated to NTIT, SME
Banking Center General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Public Finance and Taxation, Aletheia University,
Zhongshan Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Economics, Feng Chia University, General Administration
Department Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business Administration , Tunghai University, General
Administration Department Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Applied Commerce, National Taichung Institute of
Technology, Linsen Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Public and Management,Supplementary Junior College of
the National Open University,Consumer Banking Center Deputy General
Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Banking and Insurance, National Taichung Institute of
Technology, Taichung Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Economics, Tunghai University, Consumer Banking Center
Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Public Finance and Taxation, Feng Chia University, Credit
Card Center Deputy Center Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Finance Stock Practice, Chung Hua University, Nantun
Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Shin Min Commercial and Industrial Vocational Senior High School,
Fengxin Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

3 Corporate Governance

Shares Held (%)

Other Positions
Held Current

Director of COTA
Bank Insurance
Broker Co., Ltd.

Supervisor of
COTA Bank
Insurance Broker
Co., Ltd.

Director of COTA
Bank Insurance
Broker Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2009
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Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager
Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch General
Manager

Branch
General Manager

Branch
General Manager

Branch General
Manager

Chung-Lung Tsai

Sheng-Li Hung

Min-Chang Lin

Chih-Hui Chen

Shih-Tsung Chou

Kuo-Ho Chang

Shih-Jung Chen

Chih-Peng Yang

Chia-Wen Ke

His-Hsien Wang

Feng-Jung Yeh

Chi-Shen Huang

Chang-Cheng
Chen

Hung-Chi Tung

Chi-Sheng Chang

Shih-Tsung Liu

Lu-Chen Liao

Wen-Jeng Chen

Ching-Hsu Hsu

Ching-Sung Chen

Date of

Inauguration

Apr 1, 2007

Oct 15, 2009

Oct 15, 2009

Jun 25,2009

Jul't, 2006

Sep 15, 2008

Jul 10, 2002

Jul'1, 2006

Sep 15, 2008

Nov 21, 2005

Oct 1, 2008

Mar 3, 2006

Apr 1, 2009

Oct 1, 2008

Sep 15, 2008

Apr 1, 2007

Sep 15, 2008

Jul1, 2006

Sep 15,2008

Oct 15, 2007

209,710

56,701

111,246

7,645

224,536

21,451

307,333

89,336

66,836

43,786

77,701

194,286

87,632

133,504

815,230

224,910

137,175

119,601

113,454

123,246

0.06

0.02

0.03

0.00

0.06

0.01

0.08

0.02

0.02

0.01

0.02

0.05

0.02

0.04

0.22

0.06

0.04

0.03

0.03

0.03

345,163

4,761

28,571

337,786

350,379

20,571

267,619

12,107

34,286

569

116,815

169,727

168,009

25,039

245,728

81,147

Shares Owned | Shares Held
Shares Owned | by Spouses and | under Surrogate
Minors AC

0.09

0.00

0.01

0.09

0.10

0.01

0.07

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.03

0.05

0.05

0.01

0.07

0.02

Education & Key Past Positions

Master in Department of Industrial Engineering and Management National
Chin-Yi University of Technology, Zhongshan branch General Manager of
COTA Bank

National Open College of Continuing Education Affiliated to National
Taichung Institute of Technology, Wealth Management Center General
Manager of COTA Bank

Department of General Business, Shin Min Commercial & Industrial
Vocational Senior High School, Dajhih Branch General Manager of COTA
Bank

Department of Computer Science, Feng Chia University, Trust Department
General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business Administration, The Overseas Chinese
College,Changhua Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of General Business, Shin Min Commercial and Industrial
Vocational Senior High School, Dajhih Branch Deputy General Manager of
COTA Bank

Department of Oceanography, Chinese Culture University, Credit
Management Department Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business Administration, National Open College of
Continuing Education Affiliated to National Taichung Institute of
Technology, Changhua Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Master in Institute of Technology Management, Chung Hua University,
Peitun Mini Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Soochow University School of Law, Manager of CTCB, Panchiao Branch
General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Finance, Chaoyang University of Technology, Chungcheng
Mini Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Banking and Insurance, National Taichung Institute of
Technology, Panchiao Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of General Business of Extension Business Vocational School,
National Taichung Institute of Technology, Fengyuan Branch Deputy
General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of International Trade, Supplementary Junior College, Shigian
Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business, Ming Te Home Economics and Commercial
Senior High School, Credit Management Project Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business, The National Open University, SME Banking
Center Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Shin Min Commercial and Industrial Vocational Senior High School ,
Fengyuan Branch Project Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Business Administration, Chaoyang University of
Technology, Nanmen Branch Deputy General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of General Business, National Changhua Senior School of
Commerce, Fengle Branch General Manager of COTA Bank

Department of Accounting Statistics National Changhua Senior School of
Commerce, Credit Management Department Project Manager of COTA
Bank

CDTF. Commercial Bank

Other Positions
Held Current
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3 Corporate Governance

3-2-3. Directors, Supervisors, President and Executive Vice presidents’ Remuneration in Recent Year

(1) Directors’ Remuneration
Unit: TWD thousand

Compensation Compensations received by part-time employees

SumofAB,C
Pension and Earning Professional | and D /after- tax
Rewards | Superannuation |  Distribution Practice profit (%)
(A) (B) €) D)

Employee 0D, Whether
Share ornotany
Subscription | after-tax | compensaion
Warrants | profit (%) | isreceived
(H) from other

Salary, Bonus|  Pension Employee
and Special and bonus
Disbursement | Superannuation Distribution
(E) ) ©

COTA CON- Dusesses

SOLIDATION oo an

Solication

Con-
Solidation

Teinvested

Bark | O | Bank |, 9 | Bank | CO™ | mank | M [gan| GO ol COM | gy

olidation| 8™ |sofiation| B8 |sofiation| ™ | Soication| B&™ | Soication| 2™ Soliation COTA

Con-
COTA | o | sibsidares
Cash | Stock | Cash | Stock ST
Dividend | Dividends | Dividend | Divdends

Chun-Tse

Chairman Liao

Managing | Ying-Che
Director Chang

Managing | Dong-Po

Director Xie
Managing I
Director Yao-Ting Li
Managing |
(Independent) J\fan nChun
Director 9
' Chan-Wen
Director Lin
’ Ying-Chieh
Director 1ef
) Pi-Jung - - - - 488 | 488 (11,634 11,637 [39.09 39.10 - 10,745 10,745 | - - - - - - |(Note 1)| (Note 2) | NIL
Director Hsieh % %
. Song-Yue
Director Liao
Chun-
Director Chuan
Wang
) Guo-Zhou
Director Chen

Director Xian-De Lai

Mu-Chuan

Director Huang

Independent |Kung-
Director Cheng Lin

Independent

Director | Y0 Chi

Note 1: The sum is 73.74% of after-tax profit (Managing Director and Ex-President Ying-Che Chang retired in 2008 , but his pension expense payable in 2009 was TWD10,745 thousand including TWD6,645
thousand in a pension fund maintained with the Bank of Taiwan and TWD4,100 thousand in independent pension fund of the Bank)
Note 2: The sum is 73.75% of after-tax profit.
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‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

Classification of

Remuneration for Directors

Classification of Remuneration

Unit: TWD

Aggregate amount of A, B, C and D Aggregate amount of A, B, C, D, E,F and G

Consolidation

Under 2,000,000

2,000,000 -
5,000,000 -
10,000,000 -
15,000,000 - 30,000,000
30,000,000 - 50,000,000
50,000,000 - 100,000,000
Above 100,000,000
TOTAL

5,000,000
10,000,000
15,000,000

Mu-Chuan Huang,
Dong-Po Xie,
Xian-De Lai,
Song-Yue Liao,
Chan-Wen Lin,
Ying-Che Chang,
Kung-Cheng Lin,

Chun-Chuan Wang,
Yao-Ting Li,
Ying-Chieh Lai,
Pi-Jung Hsieh,
Guo-Zhou Chen,
Yen-Chun Wang,
Po-Yao Chi

Chun-Tse Liao

15 (Person)

Mu-Chuan Huang,  Chun-Chuan Wang,
Dong-Po Xie, Yao-Ting Li,
Xian-De Lai, Ying-Chieh Lai,
Song-Yue Liao,  Pi-Jung Hsieh,
Chan-Wen Lin, Guo-Zhou Chen,
Ying-Che Chang, ~ Yen-Chun Wang,
Kung-Cheng Lin, ~ Po-Yao Chi

Chun-Tse Liao

15 (Person)

Mu-Chuan Huang,  Chun-Chuan Wang,
Dong-Po Xie, Yao-Ting Li,
Xian-De Lai, Ying-Chieh Lai,
Song-Yue Liao, Pi-Jung Hsieh,
Chan-Wen Lin, Guo-Zhou Chen,
Yen-Chun Wang,  Kung-Cheng Lin,
Po-Yao Chi
Chun-Tse Liao
Ying-Che Chang (Note)
15 (Person)

Consolidation

Mu-Chuan Huang, Chun-Chuan Wang,

Dong-Po Xie,
Xian-De Lai,
Song-Yue Liao,
Chan-Wen Lin,
Yen-Chun Wang,
Po-Yao Chi

Yao-Ting Li,
Ying-Chieh Lai,
Pi-Jung Hsieh,
Guo-Zhou Chen,
Kung-Cheng Lin,

Chun-Tse Liao

Ying-Che Chang (Note)

15(Person)

Note: including pension paid as ex-president of the Bank

Supervisors’ Remuneration

Professional Practice

Rewards

(A)

Bank | Consolidation

(2) Supervisors’ Remuneration

Pension and

Superannuation (B)

Bank | Consolidation

Earning Distribution

©)

Bank | Consolidation

(D)

Bank | Consolidation

Sumof A, B,Cand D
[after-tax profit (%)

Unit: TWD thousand

Whether or not any compensation
is received from other reinvested

businesses than subsidiaries

Bank | Consolidation

Managing Supervisor
Supervisor
Supervisor
Supervisor
Supervisor

Lien-Kui Wang
Dhe-Chin Lai
Yong-Zhi Wang
Guo-Zhao Xiao

Zhuang-Tai Wang

163 163

3,300

3,300

11.17%

1.17%

NIL

Classification of
Remuneration for
Supervisors

Classification of Remuneration

People of Supervisors

Unit: TWD

Aggregate amount of A, B, C and D

Under 2,000,000

2,000,000 - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - 10,000,000
10,000,000 - 15,000,000
15,000,000 - 30,000,000
30,000,000 - 50,000,000
50,000,000 - 100,000,000

Above 100,000,000

TOTAL

Lien-Kuiwang, ~ Yong-Zhi Wang, ~ Zhuang-Tai Wang,
Dhe-Chin Lai,  Guo-Zhao Xiao,
5 (Person)

Consolidation D

Lien-Kuiwang,  Yong-Zhi Wang,
Dhe-Chin Lai,  Guo-Zhao Xiao,
5 (Person)

Zhuang-Tai Wang,
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3 Corporate Governance

President and Senior Executive Vice Presidents’ Remuneration
As of Dec 31, 2009, Unit: TWD thousand

Employee Bonus from Earning

Distribution Employee

Special ‘ Total /after- Share. Other
Disbursement | _Cash st e tax profit (%) | Subscription | Remuneration
Dividend Warrants

Share | Price | Amount

Bonus and

Aggregate
Stock Dividends ‘ Amount of the

Pension and
Superannuation

President Chin-Ting Chang
. . Shu-Yuan Tsai
Chief Auditor (98121 retred)
Chief Auditor Shih-Chien Chin 28.307
) o ) ) | 5626 (Note 2) 1,808 26 - - - 35,767 (Note 4) - NIL
Senior Executive Vice President | Jung-Hsien Chiu (Note 3)

Tsai-Hsiung Liao
(98.3.15 retired)

Senior Executive Vice President |Chih-Sheng Hsiao

Senior Executive Vice President

Note 1: Not applied as the Bank is not a listing company.

Note 2: Actual amount of pension payable in 2009: TWD27,875 thousand (including ex-president Ying-Che Chang retired in 2008 but pension paid in 2009)

Note 3: Appropriated amount of pension expense in 2009: TWD450 thousand.

Note 4: The amount of pension in 2009 paid TWD?28,307 thousand: a pension fund maintained with the Bank of Taiwan paid TWD20,522 thousand, independent pension fund of the Bank paid TWD7,295
thousand. The amount of pension expense was TWD460 thousand. The sum is 115.34% of after-tax profit.

Classification of Remuneration
Unit: TWD

Classification of President People of President and Senior Executive Vice Presidents

and Senior Executive Vice
Presidents’ Remuneration Consolidation

Jung-Hsien Chiu,  Chih-Sheng Hsiao, ~ Shih-Chien Chin, Jung-Hsien Chiu,  Chih-Sheng Hsiao, ~ Shih-Chien Chin,
Tsai-Hsiun Liao, ~ Shu-Yuan Tsai Tsai-Hsiun Liao, ~ Shu-Yuan Tsai

2,000,000 - 5,000,000 Chin-Ting Chang Chin-Ting Chang
5,000,000 - 10,000,000
10,000,000 - 15,000,000
15,000,000 - 30,000,000
30,000,000 - 50,000,000
50,000,000 - 100,000,000
Above 100,000,000
TOTAL 6 (Person) 6 (Person)

Under 2,000,000

Note 1: Senior Executive Vice President Tsai-hsiun Liao was to retire upon reaching the statutory age on Mar. 15, 2009.
Note 2: Ex-Chief Auditor Shu-Yuan Tsaii was to retire upon reaching the statutory age on Dec. 1, 2009. Executive Vice President Shih-Chien Chin was promoted to Chief Auditor on Oct. 15, 2009.
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‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

List of Compensation Paid to President. Executive Vice Presidents and General Managers
As of Dec 31, 2009; Unit: TWD thousand

Stock dividends Cash Dividends
Shares | Price | Amount Amount Totel Amount TOtﬁlnlc‘?)rfg(;u([’]/toj)’\‘et
President Chin-Ting Chang
Chief Auditor Shih-Chien Chin
Senior Executive Vice President Jung-Hsien Chiu
Senior Executive Vice President Chih-Sheng Hsiao
Executive vice President Yun-Ching Wang
Executive vice President Hsin-De Chang
Executive vice President Chang-Lu Liu
Executive vice President Tai-An chen
Executive vice President Ho-Shun Chang
Department General Manager A-Kuai Chen
Department General Manager Chiu-Yun Huang
Department General Manager Chih-Hui Chen
Department General Manager Wei-Bin Lin

Department General Manager
Department General Manager
Department General Manager

Huan-Mou Cheng
Jui-Sen Liao
Kuang-Hsiung Huang

Chief Secretary Chien-Cheng Hsu
Department General Manager Chih-Hung Huang
Department General Manager Hung-Tsang Chiang
Branch General Manager Ling-Chen Ting
Branch General Manager Chang-Chieh Lin
Manager | Project Manage Shun-Hsien Weng note 201 201 0.6468%
Branch General Manager Mao-Sheng Huang
Branch General Manager Pi-Li Hsu
Branch General Manager Chung-Lung Tsai
Branch General Manager Sheng-LI Huang
Branch General Manager Min-Chang Lin
Branch General Manager Shih-Tsung Chou
Branch General Manager Ho-Kuo Chang
Branch General Manager Shih-Jung Chen
Branch General Manager Chih-Peng Yang
Branch General Manager Chia-Wen Ke
Branch General Manager His-Hsien Wang
Branch General Manager Feng-Jung Yeh
Branch General Manager Chi-Shen Huang
Branch General Manager Chang-Cheng Chen

Branch General Manager
Branch General Manager

Hung-Chi Tung
Chi-Sheng Chang

Branch General Manager Shih-Tsung Liu
Branch General Manager Lu-Chen Liao
Branch General Manager Wen-Jeng Chen
Branch General Manager Ching-Hsu Hsu
Branch General Manager Ching-Sung Chen

Note: Not applied as the Bank is not a listing company.
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3 Corporate Governance

3-2-4. Ratio of Total Remuneration Paid to Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice
Presidents over Past 2 Years to Net Income

Total Amount / Net Income
Year 2009 Year 2008

39.10%

Director

. Percentage ignored due to loss after tax
Supervisor 11.17% in 2008.
Total 50.27%
Remarks:
Transportation allowance and remuneration of director and supervisor is paid in accordance with guidelines of the Bank’s articles of incorporate and the resolution of stockholders’
meeting.

Total Amount / Net Income

Year 2009 Year 2008
President and 25 5070° ) Percentage ignored due to loss after tax
Senior Executive Vice President ' ° in 2008.
Remarks:

1. Remuneration for president and vice-president is paid by the resolution of the board of directors.

2. Payment of employee salary is calculated by relative by-laws.

3. Employee bonus is distributed by the resolution of the annual shareholders’ general meeting and applicable rules of employee bonus.
4. Performance bonus is paid according to 2009's earning status and rules of performance evaluation.
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3-3. Operation of Corporate Governance

‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

3-3-1. Operation status of board of directors: convened 5 meetings in the year 2009, and the
records of attendance by directors and supervisors are shown as follows:

Attendance

Actual Attendance

in Person Attendance by Proxy Rate (%)
Chairman Chun-Tse Liao 5 0 100.00%
Managing Director Ying-Che Chang 5 0 100.00%
Managing Director Dong-Po Xie 8 0 100.00%
Managing Director Yao-Ting Li 5 0 100.00%
tanaging (independent | ven.Ghun Wang 3 2 60.00%
Director Chan-Wen Lin 5 0 100.00%
Director Ying-Chieh Lai 3 2 60.00%
Director Pi-Jung Hsieh 4 1 80.00%
Director Song-Yue Liao 8 0 100.00%
Director Chun-Chuan Wang 5 0 100.00%
Director Guo-Zhou Chen g 0 100.00%
Director Hsien-The Lai 5 0 100.00%
Director Mu-Chuan Huang 5 0 100.00%
Independent Director Kung-Cheng Lin 5 0 100.00%
Independent Director Po-Yao Chi 4 1 80.00%
Standing Supervisor Lien-Kui Wang 5 0 100.00%
Supervisor Dhe-Chin Lai 5 0 100.00%
Supervisor Yong-Zhi Wang 5 0 100.00%
Supervisor Guo-Zhao Xiao 5 0 100.00%
Supervisor Zhuang-Tai Wang 5 0 100.00%
Chairman Chun-Tse Liao & 0 100.00%
Managing Director Ying-Che Chang 5 0 100.00%
Managing Director Dong-Po Xie 5 0 100.00%

Remarks:

1. Matters specified in Article 14.3 of the Securities Exchange Act, or board resolutions where independent directors have expressed opposition or qualified opinions that have been
noted in the record or declared in writing: none.

2. Avoidance of interest by directors
Name of director: Pi-Jung Hsieh
Issues: change guarantors for loans of Ju Hsing International Co., Ltd
Reasons for avoidance and attendance:
The 6th Meeting of the 4th Board of Directors held on Sep. 24, 2009: Directors did not attend, vote or discuss.
The 7th Meeting of the 4th Board of Directors held on Dec.18, 2009: Directors attend by proxy but did not vote.

3. Assessment of objectives and implementation status in the area of strengthening the powers of the board of directors for the current and immediately past years will be carried out:
Set up “Remuneration and Assessment Committee” to carry out the managerial powers of the board of directors. The Bank mandates professional lawyers annually as law consultant.
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3 Corporate Governance

3-3-2. Operation status of the auditing committee or supervisors attendance the practice of
Board of Directors:

The Bank elected supervisors to execute the function of auditing committee.

Board of Directors convened 5 meetings (A) in 2009, and the records of attendance by supervisors are shown as follows:

b | N
Standing Supervisor Lien-Kui Wang 5 100%
Supervisor Dhe-Chin Lai 5 100%
Supervisor Yong-Zhi Wang 5 100%
Supervisor Guo-Zhao Xiao 5 100%
Supervisor Zhuang-Tai Wang 5 100%
Remarks:

. The composition and duty of Supervisors
+ Status of communication among supervisors, shareholder and staff of the Bank:
* Supervisors may investigate the operational and financial condition of the Bank from time to time, and set up the directory of members for easy communicate.
+ Communication between supervisors and internal auditors and accountants:
+ The internal and external audit reports are all submitted to supervisors for review.
* Supervisors investigate financial reports annually and discuss with manager of Accounting Dept, CPAs.

. Supervisors attendance the practice of Board of Director
+ The 5th Meeting of the 4th Board of Directors held on Jun. 18, 2009 approved Fengxin branch to stop business temporarily.
+ The 6th Meeting of the 4th Board of Directors held on Sep. 24, 2009 adopted the decision that Shih-Chien Chin being appointed as Chief Auditor.
+ The 7th Meeting of the 4th Board of Directors held on Dec. 18, 2009 discussed the annual general and special audit reports, address of Xinzhu branch, and ex-manager of Wealth
Management Center Sheng-Li Hung retirement.

no
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3-3-3. Disclosure Information of Corporate Governance

CDTF. Commercial Bank

Status of COTA Bank’s Corporate Governance and Comparison with
“The Principles of Corporate Governance” of Banking

Status of Operation

As of Dec 31, 2009

Differences from General Guideline of Banking

and Reasons

. Bank’s equity structure and shareholder’s right

(1) Method to deal with suggestion of shareholder or
argument.

(2) Status of controlling the roster of major
shareholders who own a relatively high
percentage of shares and who have an actual
control over the company, and of the ultimate
controllers of those major shareholders.

(3) Establishment of the firewalls and risk control
with affiliated enterprises

(1) To entrust the appropriate corporate departments to
handle matters pursuant to shareholder’s suggestion
immediately. Protected shareholder's equity. Justly
dealing shareholder Court case accusation.

(2) Trace the list of major shareholders monthly.

(3) Our bank and related companies independently
operate in financial, accounting, business and
management aspect, evaluate operating profit
and loss, carry out risk control as reference of the
firewall.

(1) No difference.
(2) No difference.
(3) No difference.

II. The composition and duty of board of directors

(1) 2008 Reelection for director and supervisor in

(1) No difference.

(1) Establishment of Independent director. shareholders’ meeting ( Implement 15 directors, (2) No difference.
(2) Status of regular evaluation of the independence including 3 independent directors )
of the auditing CPA. (2) Annual assessment.
Il Status of communication with relative party. Easy communication channels go by face to face/ No difference.
telephone/written/Internet.
VI. Public disclosure of information (1) www.cotabank.com.tw as our website to disclosure | (1) No difference.

(1) Set up website to disclosure financial report and
corporate governance information.

(2) Other method of public disclosure of information
adopted (ex. provide English versions of
information website, appoint personnel exclusively
responsible for gathering and disclosing
information, and establish a spokesperson system,
process of conference call record in website.)

financial report, corporate governance.

(2) Designed Senior executive vice as spokesperson
represented the Bank in public issues. Various
departments are equipped with the specialist to
be responsible for collecting and disclosure the
information.

(2) No difference.

V. Operations of the nominating or remunerating
committee and other functional committee of a bank.

Our bank picks the supervising mode and not
implements auditing committee. Structural guidelines
for “Nominating committee of directors and supervisors”
and” Remunerating and Investigating committee” have
been set up, others will regard operating condition to
set up.

No difference.

VI. Please describe any difference between corporate governance with “The Principles of Corporate Governance”:

2008 reelection for directors and supervisors in Shareholders’ General Meeting, implement 5 supervisors and 15 directors (including 3 independent directors)
has complied with “The Common Corporate Governance Requirements for The Banking Industry”.

VII. Please describe measures adopted by the bank in regard to social responsibility:
1. Employee rights: Advocates the human rights law spirit. According to labor standard law protect the staff rights and establishes the staff fraternity, provides

the staff welfare.

2. Investors relationship: On the Bank’s web site www.cotabank.com.tw, establish a shareholder specialty area, provide a related information search.

3. Stakeholder rights and consumer’s protection and the policy of corporate governance: Abided by standards of government of the Bank Association, we set up
rules to follow the contract and provide complaint phone line and e-mail box to protect and satisfy consumers.

4. Members of the board of directors and supervisors participate in training courses: Since Jun, 2005, after board of directors meeting, Taiwan Securities and
Futures Institute have arranged 42-hr (including 6-hr reelection courses of director and supervisor) administration courses for us, and will arrange at least one
director or supervisor every three years to participate in on-job education for trust manager.

5. The policy of risk management and standard of risk management: Establish Risk Management Center, “Assets, Liabilities and Risk Management Committee”
evaluate regularly operating risk and report to the board of directors. We obey rules of government and BIS to make policies of risk management to ensure

our safety of administration and achievements.

6. Contracted for the independent directors and independent supervisors of duty insurance: The Bank have bought liability insurance for directors, supervisors
and managers on February, 2007, and have been published in Corporate charter.

VIII. If there exist corporate governance evaluation reports done by the company itself or outsourced to professional services providers, clear descriptions of the
evaluation results, major shortcomings (or recommendations) and improvement status shall be given: None

3-3-4. Enquiry for the Bank’s “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for Banks”:
Disclosed on the Bank’s website (www.cotabankcom.tw).
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3-3-5. Statement of Internal Control

COTA Commercial Bank Statement of Internal Control

Mar. 09, 2010
To Financial Supervisory Commission

On behalf of the COTA Commercial Bank, we declare that during the period of Jan. 1, 2009
through Dec. 31, 2009 the Bank did conform to the provisions of the “Guidelines for the
establishment of internal control and internal audit systems” by establishing an internal control
system and undertaking risk management, and by having auditing carried out by an impartial
and independent auditing unit, with reports submitted on a regular basis to the Board of
Directors and Supervisors. Careful assessment shows that with the exception of items listed
in the attached chart, the internal control systems of and compliance with laws and regulations
by the different units were all implemented effectively. This statement form part of the annual
report and publicly disclosed. We understand that we are legally bound to SEC ordinance
No.20, 32, 171 and 174.

Attested by
Chairman : Chun-Tse Liao
President : Chin-Ting Chang

Compliance Officer : Shin-Chien Chin
and Chief Auditor
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Items for Improvement and Plan Table of Internal control

ltems for Improvement

Improvement Measure

As of Dec 31, 2009
Target Date

—_

. The combination lock (or key) of the vaults front door and

the key of iron palisades should be maintained respectively
by the different personnel, and together open to match a
dual control principle.

1. The Audit Office takes this imperfection into the point of
audit item, improve by implementation.

Have already carried out according to rules.

2.

The implementation opening deposit account to examine
and know customer operation situation, any matches
“Guidelines for Anti-Money Laundering Noticeable Items *
list like Money Laundering token bargain, should confirm
customer identity and subsist a related record, judge
whether must according to stipulate report the Investigation
Bureau, Ministry of Justice.

1. The implementation prevents the phony account Track to
examine and strengthen an improvement to the branch
office with more.

2. Authentically carry out according to the Guidelines for Anti-

Money Laundering Noticeable Items

Have already carried out according to rules.

w

. When the customer carries out deposit and withdrawal,

should in actual way reason trade process, can not carry out
"name in order to withdrawal, physically is a transfer " of
bargain.

1. Strengthen employee's training to guide and examine.
2. The manager sternly inspects ~ employee, and really
examines subpoena's etc. to trade certificate.

Have already carried out according to rules.

~

. According to “the security of the computer stamp system

operation control important point “article 7 rules, the
customer carries out a stamp reporting of loss, changing
stamp’s etc. should immediately create file at the system.

. Strengthen employee to train and really obey rules, the
manager should really improve according to the rules.

Have already carried out according to rules.

5.

The money flow of Loan business and should mutually
match with original application use; Finance report with
other related information anticoincidence, should find out
reason and thoroughly list in the report.

1. Should track money flow of Loan to match application use.

2. Strengthen employee to train ability of credit review.

Have already carried out according to rules.

6.

Sep 13, 1999 Ministry of Finance under doc. no. Tai-Tsai-
Jung 88737515 and the 6th of the work rule Article 10
strictly forbid the situation that employee and customer have
funds contacts.

1. Strengthening to guide employee to the employee can not
have the situation of funds contacts with customer.

2. Be included in to obey the item of the ordinance
examination.

3. Request a manager to investigate the employee moral
qualities life in response to the aggressive councilor.

Strengthen to examine whether employee has the
situation of the funds contacts with customer or not,
be juxtaposed for the internal audit of the Year 2010
apoint.

3-

3-6. CPA Audit Report

Pursuant to ordinance Act 25 of the “Guidelines for the Establishment of Internal Control and Internal Audit Systems”,
the Bank arranged KPMG certified public accountants to audit performance of internal control during the period of Jan. 1,
2009 through Dec. 31, 2009.

Certified public accountant’s audit report as follows:

With the exception of items by suggested to improve, no major deficit is found (attaching homepage of auditor’s report
and suggestion statement).

26



3 Corporate Governance

Independent Auditors’ Report

According to the article 25 promulgated by Ministry of Finance R.O.C. on “Implementation Rules
for Bank Internal Audit and Internal Control System”, when a bank engages an accountant
to audit its annual financial statements, it shall also ask the same accountant to audit its
internal control system and express opinion regarding the accuracy of information provided in
the financial statements as well as the implementation of the Bank’s internal control system,
regulatory compliance system, and the appropriateness of bank’s bad debt reserve policy.
On behalf of the KPMG, we accept being a consignor of COTA Commercial Bank to audit its internal
control system and express opinion by article 28 of the same regulation during the period of Jan. 01,
2009 through Dec. 31, 2009 as attaching the range and result of audit report.

The audit report is intended only to present the “Financial Supervisory Commission Executive Yuan”
and provide authorized persons.

kpMG

Mar. 3, 2010
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Matter of disclose

While examining find to have an
unnecessary account number can
directly access the database of SQL
of the credit card system

(ex. Account number c02, guest).

Suggestion Statement

Suggestion

Should examine the aptness that
the database account number
opens, if have an out of character
or unnecessary account number,
should immediately give delete or
stop using.

As of 2009
Opinion of Administration

Through check c02 is provided to send out the account number of the message
appropriation: the guest is to install SQL database automatically create, have
already immediately deleted; Have already controlled all database account
numbers and its use row magazine (The database account number change
register, the data management account number password variations register,
data management account number the user control register).

Itis also set one of the data management account number (sa) passwords

part respectively by the Group 2 senior clerk of IT Management Office and
supervisor in the Credit Card Center.

Find while examining that the logic
access legal power of credit card
host didn't control appropriately
(ex. Personnel in the Credit Card
Center can directly log on through
the host's governor's account
number).

Should limit the legal power of the
logic access of credit card host;
keep program or data of credit
card system from encountering a
person not appropriate change.

After the mechanism establishment of the backup operation, it is had never
set up by the user catcher to provide another the appropriation of the backup
operation.

Have already immediately built up another account number of user to provide
backup operation appropriation.

The credit card host governor's account number already change is been
responsible for by the Group 2 senior clerk of IT Management Office.

3-3-7. Cases or Penalties due to Infliction of Laws and Regulations over the Past 2 Years:

Nov. 12, 2009

No approval obtained from FSC regarding the outsourcing of the credit card promotion and issuing business by directly placing the

Case depiction

application form of virtual credit card at the particular contract shop. FSC proposed rectification notice.

Amount of fine 0

Rectification Terminate virtual credit card business.

3-3-8. Major Resolutions of Shareholders Meeting or Board of Directors Meeting in Recent Year:

Nature of Shareholders Meeting

Convoking Date

Major Resolutions

1. Approved to use legal reserve and capital reserve to make up loss of year 2008. No accumulated
loss after such make-up.

2009 Sharefolders' General Meefing May. 27, 2009 2. Resolved no shareholder dividends and bonus, employee bonus, director and supervisor
remuneration assignment for year 2008.
1. Approved the proposal of the cash capital increase by issuing the new stocks for year 2010.
2009 Board of Directors Dec. 18,2009 | 2. Constituted “Remuneration and Assessment Committee” and passed the organization

regulations.

3-3-9. Disclosures of the Resignation or Dismissal of Managerial Officers in Charge of Financial
or Accounting Reports

Reasons for

Pate @i ETEeE Resignation or Dismissal

Dated of Appointed

Chief Auditor Shu-Yuan Tsai Feb. 4, 2008 Oct. 15,2009 Retirement

Note: Managerial Officer in charge of Financial or Accounting Reports refers to chairman, president, accounting dept. manager, chief auditor, etc.

28



3 Corporate Governance

3-4. Information on the Certified Public Accountant

3-4-1. Information on the Professional Fees of the Certified Public Accountant

3-4-1-1. The fee paid for non-auditing services account for a proportion equal to one-quarter or above of
auditing:
Unit: TWD thousand
Period of Inspection by
Accountant

Covering a complete
fiscal year Remarks

Non-Auditing Fee
Accountant
Firm

Auditing

Name of Accountant e

System | Corporate | Human | Others | Sub-
Design Regist. | Resources | (note) | Total

Inspection

i ] W Period

KPMG Jun-Man, Chen | Shi-Hua, Guo 1,480 390 390 v 2009

Note: non-auditing fee including financial investigation TWD280 thousand, BIS checking report TWD40 thousand verification fee TWD70 thousand for write-off.

3-4-1-2. Whether the issuer changes its accounting firm and the amount of fees paid for auditing services
during the year in which the change is made are lower than for the previous year: None

3-4-1-3. Whether the amount of fees paid for auditing services is lower than for the previous year by 15% or
more: None

3-4-2. Information on Change of Attesting CPA: None

3-4-3. Whether the Bank’s chairman, president, or any managerial officer in charge of finance
or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a position at the accounting firm
of its certified public accountant or at an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm:
None
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3-5. Change in Shareholdings and Pledged

3-5-1. Change in Shareholdings of Directors, Supervisors, Executives and Principal Officers

3-5-1-1. Chang in Shareholdings Information

2009 Up To Jan 31, 2010

Net Change in | Net Change in | Net Changein | Net Change in
Shareholding | Shares Pledged | Shareholding | Shares Pledged

Chairman (major share holder) | Chun-Tse Liao 0 0
Managing Director Ying-Che Chang 0 0
Managing Director Yao-Ting Li 0 0
Managing Director Dong-Po Xie 0 0
Managing Director Yen-Chun Wang 0 0
Director Chan-Wen Lin 0 0
Director Pi-Jung Hsieh 0 0
Director Sung-Yueh Liao 884,837 0
Director Hsien-Te Lai 0 0
Director Ying-Chieh Lai 0 0
Director Chun-Chuan Wang 0 0
Director Kuo-Chou Chen 0 0
Director Mu-Chuan Huang 0 0
Director Po-Yao Chi 0 0
Director Kung-Cheng Lin 0 0
Standing Supervisor Lien-Kui Wang 0 0
Supervisor Dhe-Chin Lai 0 0
Supervisor Yung-Chih Wang 0 0
Supervisor Kuo-Chao Hsiao 100,000 0
Supervisor Chuang-Tai Wang 0 0
Director & President Chin-Ting Chang 70,362 0
Senior Executive Vice President | Jung-Hsien Chiu 0 0
Senior Executive Vice President | Chih-Sheng Hsiao 0 0
Chief Auditor Shih-Chien Chin 0 0
Executive Vice President Chih-Hung Huang 0 0
Executive Vice President Yun-Ching Wang 0 0
Department General Manager Huan-Mou Cheng 0 0
Department General Manager Ling-chen Ting 0 0
Department General Manager A-Kuai Chen 0 0
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2009 Up To Jan 31, 2010

Net Change in | Net Change in | Net Changein | Net Change in
Shareholding | Shares Pledged | Shareholding | Shares Pledged

Department General Manager Wei-Bin Lin 0 - 0 -
Department General Manager Jui-Sen Liao 0 - 0 -
Department General Manager Hung-Tsang Chiang 0 - 0 -
Project Manager Shun-Hsien Wong 0 = 0 =
Department General Manager Chiu-Yun Huang 0 - 0 -
Department General Manager Chang-Chieh Lin 0 - 0 -
Department General Manager Kuang-Hsiung Huang 0 - 0 -
Chief Secretary Chien-Cheng Hsu 0 - 0 -
Executive Vice President Hsin-The Chang 0 - 0 -
Executive Vice President Ho-Shun Chang 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Mao-Sheng Huang 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Pi-Li Hsu 0 - 0 -
Executive Vice President Tai-An Chen 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Chung-Lung Tsai 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Sheng-Li Hung 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Min-Chang Lin 0 = 0 =
Branch General Manager Chang-Lu Liu 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Chih-Hui Chen 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Shih-Tsung Chou 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Kuo-Ho Chang 0 = 0 =
Branch General Manager Shih-dung Chen 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Chih-Peng Yang 0 = 0 =
Branch General Manager Chia-Wen Ke 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Feng-Jung Yeh 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Hsi-Hsien Wang 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Chang-Cheng Chen 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Hung-Chi Tung 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Chi-Shen Chang 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Shih-Tsung Liu 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Lu-Chen Liao 0 - 0 =
Branch General Manager Chi-Shen Huang 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Wen-Jung Chen 0 - 0 =
Branch General Manager Ching-Hsu Hsu 0 - 0 -
Branch General Manager Ching-Sung Chen 0 - 0 -
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3-5-1-2. Information of Shareholding Transfer: None

3-5-1-3. Shares Pledged Information: None

3-5-2. Related Party Transaction of First Ten Largest Shareholders
As of Dec 31, 2009

Top ten shareholders
who meet the related
party disclosures term of
FASC NO.6 shall disclose
name and relationship

Shares Owned by Shares Held under
Spouses and Minors Surrogate A/C

Shares Owned

No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
: Held ' Held : Held Relationship
Shares o Shares o Shares o
Chun-Tse Liao 4,810,896 1.31 11,427 0.00
Song-Yue Liao 4,202,055 1.14 45,715 0.01
Tung Yang
Business
Co., Ltd 3,462,683 0.94
Xian-De Lai

Guo-Zhao Xiao 3,159,514 0.86
0o None None None
Shih-Ming Chuang | 2,211,569 0.60
Chin-Chang Lin 1,967,210 0.53
Pi-Jung Hsieh 1,880,429 0.51 1,355,059 0.37
Kuo-Chou Chen 1,820,418 0.49

Li-Chu Lee 1,779,228 | 0.48

Mu-Chuan Huang | 1,709,602 |  0.46 399 | 0.00

3-5-3. Consolidated Shareholdings: None
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4-1. Capital Shares and Dividends

4-1-1. Source of Capital

Jan., 1999

Jul., 2004

Jul., 2005

Jul., 2006

Aug., 2007

Aug., 2008

Month/Year

Issuing
price
(TWD)

10

10

10

10

10

10

318,373,096

324,740,558

333,734,078

600,000,000

600,000,000

600,000,000

3,183,730,960

3,247,405,580

3,337,340,780

6000,000,000

6,000,000,000

6,000,000,000

318,373,096

324,740.558

333,734,078

343,190,342

355,599,141

368,045,111

3,183,730,960

3,247,405,580

3,337,340,780

3,431,903,420

3,555,991,410

3,680,451,110

‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

4. Capital Arrangement

As of Dec 31, 2009; Shares Held (%)

Registered Capital Paid-in Capital

Transform from the
shares of former Credit
Cooperative

Increased from
retained earnings of
63,674,620

Staff stock dividend
increased from retained
earnings of 16,868,570

Shareholder stock
dividend increased
from retained earnings
of 73,066,630

Staff stock dividend
increased from retained
earnings of 17,803,800

Shareholder stock
dividend increased
from retained earnings
of 76,758,840

Staff stock dividend
increased from retained
earnings of 3,971,370

Shareholder stock
dividend increased
from capital reserve of
120,116,620

Increased
from capital reserve of
124,459,700

Approved under
the Document
No.87736717 of
MOF

Approved under
the Document
No.0938011008
of MOF

Approved under
the Document
N0.0940125559
of FSC

Approved under
the Document
N0.0950130685
of FSC

Approved under
the Document
N0.0960042314
of FSC

Approved under
the Document
N0.0970038581
of FSC

Type of Stock

Authorized Stock Capital

Outstanding Capital Stock

Un-issued Share

As of Dec 31, 2009

Remark

Common Stock

368,045,111

231,954,889

600,000,000

| not on the list of TSEC/OTC
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4-1-2. Shareholder Structure

As of Dec 31, 2009

, , Foreign
Government Financial Other o o
Category e o Individual Institution and
Agency Institution Institution Foreigner
Number of
el 2 5 436 67,225 16 67,684
Number of Shares 1,314,854 14,480 9,074,603 357,377,697 263,477 368,045,111
Percentage 0.36% - 2.47% 97.10% 0.07% 100%

4-1-3. Distribution of Shareholders’ Equity

4-1-3-1. Common Stock: Par Value of TWD10
As of Dec 31, 2009

Tier Number of Shareholders Number of Shares Percentage (%)
1- 999 48,512 9,948,934 2.7
1,000 - 5,000 11,090 19,331,309 5.25
5,001 - 10,000 1,158 7,447,396 2.02
10,001 - 15,000 4,004 46,137,636 12.54
15,001 - 20,000 210 3,563,078 0.97
20,001 - 30,000 603 14,244,968 3.87
30,001 - 50,000 707 29,201,285 7.93
50,001 - 100,000 753 50,482,441 13.72
100,001 - 200,000 381 52,417,136 14.24
200,001 - 400,000 179 48,674,657 13.23
400,001 - 600,000 34 15,929,496 4.33
600,001 - 800,000 16 10,599,885 2.88
800,001 - 1,000,000 5 4,285,531 1.16
1,000,001 and above 32 55,787,359 15.16
Total 67,684 368,045,111 100.00

4-1-3-2. Preferred Stock: None
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4-1-4. List of Major Shareholders

As of Dec 31, 2009

Number of Shares Percentage (%)
Chun-Tse Liao 4,810,896 1.31%
Song-Yue Liao 4,202,055 1.14%

Note: Disclose the ratio of holding shares above 1%.

4-1-5. Market Value, Net Worth, Earnings, and Dividend per Share in Recent 2 Years

2009 2008 Up To Jan 31,2010

Highest N/A N/A N/A
vamet | Lowest N/A N/A N/A
Average N/A N/A N/A
Before Distribution 12.72 12.58 12.73
Net Worth —
After Distribution (Note 2) 12.58 Note 3
Weighted Average Shares 368,045,111 368,045,111 368,045,111
Eamings | Earings Before adjust 0.08 (1.74) 0.003
perShare | After adjust (Note 2) (1.74) (Note 3)
Cash dividends 0 0.1 (Note 2)
Dividend | Stock Retained earning 0 0 (Note 2)
(Note 1) | Dividends Capital reverse 0 0.35 (Note 2)
Dividends in Arrear 0 0 0
ROI P/E Ratio N/A N/A N/A
Analysis | P/D Ratio N/A N/A N/A
(Note 4) I Gasn Dividend Yield N/A N/A N/A

Note 1: dividends of serial year present earnings assignment of previous year.

Note 2: year 2009 distribution number is to be been confirmed after the approval of board of directors and the shareholder meeting.
Note 3: year 2010 hasn't ended.

Note 4: not applied as the Bank is not a listing company.

4-1-6. Dividend Policy and Executive Status

The Alternation of dividend policy will affect the market price of stock and the capability for future development. The
advantages and disadvantages for that are even more difficult to be anticipated. The Bank, formerly a credit cooperative,
used to pay out higher dividends. But nowadays, under intense competition banking environment, we would rather
utilize dividend leverage to reach stable growth as well as increase marginal utility of capital. For the goal to align
expansion of our business scale, profit and adequate capital ratio, we would adopt the residual dividend policy.

Our dividend policy is carried out by the access of “assignable earning distribution”. After appropriate legal reserves, we
distribute the full earnings to the staff and the shareholders. Our shareholders used to acquire admirable dividends as
good as other banks. But for the coming years, the operating capital becomes ultra essential resulting from the need for
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opening new branches, developing new products, cutting NPL ratio, reducing the overdue loan and growing business
scale. It is helpful for the Bank’s long-term business expansion by taking use of the accumulative legal earnings
reserves.

According to article 35 of the Bank’s articles of incorporate, earnings of fiscal year should pay taxes and offset prior
year's losses and appropriate 30% as legal reverse in turns. The remaining is regulated to distribute as follows:

¢ Up to 10% as dividend to the shareholders.

* Up to 3% as remuneration to the directors and supervisors.
* 10% as bonus to staff.

e Shareholder bonus.

* Special reserves.

Before the legal reserve is accumulated up to the total capital, the highest cash dividends are limited to not over 15%.

4-1-7. The Influence of Stock Dividends to Market Value and Earnings Per Share:

As financial forecast is not required under stock dividends assigning proposal by shareholders’ meeting, no disclosure is
needed in accordance with related regulation.

4-1-8. Staff Bonus and Remuneration to Directors and Supervisors:

Assignment is in accordance to the article 34 of the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation

4-1-9. Repurchase Stocks: None

4-2. Issuance of Bank Debentures

First Issuance of Bank Debentures

Type of Bank Debenture (1% term of 2006)
Date Approved by Central Competent Authority, Executive Yuan, Financial Supervisory Commission September 9, 2005 Chin Kuan Yin
Document No. (3) N0.0940024574
Date of Issue Mar. 28, 2006
Denomination 500 thousand, 1 million, 5 million and 10 million
Issue and transaction Place Taiwan, R.0.C.
Currency New Taiwan Dollars
Issue Price 100 dollars
Total Amount 2.5 billion
Type A: First 5 years 3.3%, Last 5 years 5%
Interest Rate Type B: First 5 years, 1.20% plus the Bank's Board's Index rate of time saving deposits.
Last 5 years, 2.50% plus the Bank's Board's Index rate of time saving deposit.
Term 10 years, maturing on Mar. 28, 2016
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The right to receive payment for sums due under the debenture (including principal and

Priority of Payment interest) takes precedence only over that of bank shareholders for distribution of surplus
assets and is subordinate to the claims of all other creditors of the Bank.

Guaranteeing Institution None

Trustee None

Jih-Sun Securities Co., Ltd./

Underwriter Grand Cathay Securities Corporation

Certifying Lawyers None

Certifying CPA Chuan-Chuan Wu / Jun-Man Chen

Certifying Financial Institution Hwa-Tai Commercial Bank, Trusts Dept.

Method of Redemption fF:gch;?:tl)p?Idz (L)J??Tomlwa;ur.rigs?; g?;a Bank is entitled to redeem by an announcement
Unredeemed Balance 2.5 billion

Preceding Year's Paid-in capital 3,337,341,000

Preceding Year's Post-Audit Net Value 5,224,445,831

Performance Status Normal

The Bank is entitled to redeem by an announcement from Feb. 1, 2011 to Mar. 28,

Sellback or Early Redemption conditions 2011 or Principal paid upon maturity

Rollover and Exchange Conditions None
Restrictive Conditions Subordinated
Capital Utilization plan Raise the Bank’s own capital and risk asset ratios

Amount of Registered Issuance Plus Outstanding
Balance Already Issued as Ratio of Net Final Value | 47.85%
of Issuance in Preceding Year.

Yes,
Tier 2 Capital

: - Taiwan Ratings Corporation Dec. 29, 2009
Name of Rating Institution Long-term: twBBB+

Date of Rating, and .
) ) 0 Short-term: twA-2
Rating Given Outlook: Stable

Whether or not recorded as qualified capital and type

4-3. Preferred Stock: None

4-4. Issuance of Depositary Receipt: None

4-5. Employee Stock Option Plan: None

4-6. Merging or Acquisition of Other Financial Institutions:

In recent year and up to the annual report is been printed, the Bank do not merge or acquire other financial institutions.

4-7. Utilization of Capital Plan: None
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5. Business Operation

5-1. Business Report

5-1-1. Comparison over the Past Five Years
5-1-1-1. Deposits

The amount of deposits as the end of 2009 totaled TWD100,853 million, increasing TWD 3,399 million compared to
year earlier at a rate of 3.49%. We intend to improve our quality and quantity of deposit structure, implement the entire-
personnel marketing, enforce interaction with clients to develop business chances, and open up the prospects of the
corporate salary remittance service. We also try to improve the functions of E-banking and phone banking, and to visit
neighboring area to seek for new customers in the market.

In deposits structure, our demand deposits stood at TWD37,194 million that was the 36.88% of the total deposits. Our
time deposits stood at TWD63,634 million that was the 63.10% of the total deposits. Our deposit structure is fine and we
will step forward to improving quality & quantity of total deposit through our sound corporate image and right operation
strategies. Here follows deposit structure ratio analysis:

Structure of Deposits . y
Unit: TWD million; %

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Amount

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Checking Deposits 1,534 152 | 1,345 1.38 1,479 158 | 1,566 164 | 1577 1.91

Demand Deposits 10,100 1002 | 8725 895 | 8311 888 | 8260 863 | 6036 7.31

Bema'.‘d Savings 25,560 2534 | 20,767 | 2131 | 21658 2313 | 22,988 2401 | 19258 | 23.32
eposits

Time Deposits 13,738 1362 | 14,881 1527 | 14,608 1560 | 17,129 1789 | 15312 | 1854

Time Savings 49,896 | 4948 | 51,733 | 5300 | 47570 | 5080 | 45770 | 47.81 | 40,39 |  48.92

Deposits

Remittances 25 0.02 3 0.00 6 0.01 24 0.02 3 0.00

Total 100,853 | 100.00 | 97,454 | 100.00 | 93,632 | 100.00 | 95737 | 100.00 | 82,582 | 100.00

5-1-1-2. Loans

The amount of loans outstanding as the end of 2009 totaled TWD78,093 million; here follows the loan ratio analysis.
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Structure of Loans _ .
Unit: TWD million; %

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
Overdrafts 0| o012 132 | 016 167 | 020 155 | 0.9 4| 006
Bl Discount 227 | 029 273 | 034 %7 | 045 U5 | 042 206 | 043
Car Loans 1153 | 1477 | 1073 | 1331 | 8648 | 1053 | 6369 | 777 | 4031 | 580
Mortgage loans 19,993 | 2560 | 1914 | 2360 | 20051 | 2684 | 24581 | 3000 | 19,168 | 27.58
E’ggﬁ;“”se"“md 10008 | 2561 | 26481 | 3282 26445 | 3218 | 26986 | 3294 | 27457 | 3907

Other Secured Loans 24,562 31.45 | 22,669 28.09 | 23,431 28.52 22,738 27.75 12,720 25.49

Alowances for Bad 882 SloAa017 | 26 700 | 086 68| 079 626 090
Sub Total 75,527 78388 | 97.15 | 80400 | 97.86 | 80526 | 9828 | 67,786 | 97.53
Acceptance receivable 8 0.01 35 0.04 4 0.00 22 0.03 11 0.11
Guarantee receivable | 1,676 | 215 | 1251 | 155 | 1,053 | 1.8 73 | 090 | 1,081 | 156
ohowances for Bad 882 1017 | 126| 709, | 086 | 648| 079 | 626 09
Total 78003 | 10000 | 80691 | 100.00 | 82166 | 100.00 | 81,930 | 100.00 | 69,504 | 100.00

Note: This table includes discount, overdraft, common loan, trade finance, overdue, draft purchase, acceptance draft receivable, and guarantee.

The most serious economic event in 2009 was the financial tsunami by sub-prime crisis, breaking down the global
financial order. Due to the financial damage, enterprises run business in a more conservative way, withering civil
investment and funds demand. The Bank still expanded vigorously our corporate loan business and promoted market
shares. Our SME business loans amount increased around TWD800 million more than last year’s.

Under the financial crisis attack, the government vigorously encouraged investment and supporting democratic business
by asking banks to maintain normal accrediting function and help weak-credited SME business acquire operation funds.
We viewed risk as a great concern and followed conservative accredit policy, watching credit limit closely in order to
increase secured or self-liquidating loans and also to decrease credit-related product.

The global governments cut interest rates to relieve financial crisis damage, attempting to stimulate investment
and consumption. The Central Bank of China’s rate cutting policy made Loan business profit wither and economic
environment rigorous. The Bank will view loan-spread profit as a high priority mission by weighing funding cost and
executing differential-pricing policy to secure earnings. We will also vigorously create service income to acquire
income.
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5-1-1-3. Wealth Management

The Bank primarily focused on providing customers with specified trust businesses such as domestic/overseas trust
funds, real estate trust funds, and insurance agency service as well.

Wealth Management . "
Unit: TWD million; %

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Life Insurance 2,379 38.1 1,111 29 135 4 136 9 314 36
Insurance

Property Insurance 26 04 1 0 0.8 0 0.1 0 0.9 0
Trust Qverseas Trust Funds 1,627 26.1 1,360 36 1,656 43 464 32 469 53
Funds Domestic Trust Funds 2,137 34.2 1,296 35 1,962 51 653 45 100 11

Money Trusts 23 04 0.8 0 94 2 200 14
Trusts

Real Estate Trusts 48 0.8 27 0 20 0
Total 6240 100 | 3,795.8 100 | 3,867.8 100 | 1,453.1 100 883.9 100

5-1-2. Business Plans for year 2010
5-1-2-1. Operating Plans
5-1-2-1-1. Organization Development

@ To reallocate one branch in 2010

@ To streamline operation process, building up computer operation system to improve service efficiency & quality

® To enhance in-house communication and track execution performance by periodically convening operation
conference and establishing rating grade system.

@ To increase new business competence via advancing IT service system for operation analysis.

@ To advance IT security, maintaining IT operation’s correctness, secret, completeness and usability.

@ To conform to BASEL Il with building quantity index for accredit system, risk capital requirement system and risk
management operation improvement.

@ To satisfy more clients’ demand by creating new ATM function such as Foreign Exchange business.

@ To modify and transfer the date columns for demand deposit and loan system for 24hr services, responding to the
future coming year 2011.

5-1-2-1-2. Consumer Banking

@ To sift out high-quality target clients and provide tailor-made services

@ To enhance top-ranking investors’ identification of our products

@ To enlarge product service and private banking loan scale by innovating low-risk, value-added financial products
following market trend

@ To enhance the whole sales team’s productivity by enforcing team members on-the-job training, focusing law
compliance, product direction, marketing method, cold-call skill and service etiquette.
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@ To better accrediting personnel’s performance and implement “client differential” strategy, enlarging low-risk clients’
loan scale and closely watching high-risk clients’ loan quality via improving credit investigation procedure, and real
estate appraise procedure.

@ To reach economic scale goal and smooth loan procedure, lowering operation cost by planning back office operation
procedure standardized and automated

@ To secure bank profit and enlarge private banking business by streamlining personal loan credit-investigating
procedure and rebalancing on quantity & quality of credit

@ To better ante-risk review and post-risk management by timely examining credit investigation operation status and
asset quality, and irregularly adjusting product pricing and loan policies

@ To build up consumer banking center’s optimal business model & whole-competence to adapt to the external
competence and the change of regulation

5-1-2-1-3. Corporate Banking

® To set up “Corporate Banking Finance Team” in charge of enterprise loan business, enlarging corporate banking
market shares and satisfy enterprises financial need by providing investment advises from asset/liability side.

@ To promote financing services for small-middle business enterprises by providing whole credit investigation project,
including “joy loans” and “machine-collateralized loans” to meet the need of governmental economy developing policy

@ To enhance BIS ratio by strengthening external guarantee of small and medium business, lowering credit risk and
better the Bank’s risk control in good use of “Small and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund”.

@ To meet the need of clients and increase customer base and economic scale with strong credit analysis of operation
revolving funding and financial innovation

@ To benefit corporate banking business territory by enhancing professional personnel’s training and marketing ability

@ To better employee competence and bank profit by educating profession personnel with marketing ability and
technology

5-1-2-1-4. International Banking & Foreign Exchange Business

@ To strengthen cross-strait and triangle-trade financial business and expand OBU profit margin

@ To continue building up global remittance network and promote trade financing business for higher foreign exchange
business profit, and vigorously take part in international synthetic loans to raise bank’s reputation

@ To allocate adequately foreign exchange investment exposure and target high-rating overseas securities for higher
foreign exchange business revenue

@ To enforce profession personnel’s foreign exchange know-how and training in order to sharpen skills for expanding
business territory

@ To provide clients with convenient internet banking foreign exchange service trading function.

@ To apply new derivative financial products and strengthen relationship with peer domestic & foreign banks

@ To build up a more efficient foreign exchange trade operation platform and strengthen risk management function by
planning new system for FX product

5-1-2-1-5. Wealth Management

® To aggressively transform internal personnel to financial consultants and weed out unqualified personnel by training
and certificate acquirement
@ To strengthen customer relationship by periodically holding wealth management seminars and product road shows.
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@ To raise internet banking utility rate in order to facilitate internet order placing and cost down

® To keep stable fee income resource via increasing property insurance commission income

® To progress market share via bond fund sale and fee income

@ To actively develop new financial product, increasing product spectrum and make business multi-directions
@ To examine financial consultant’s internal control process and law compliance on an irregular time schedule
@ To more precisely do know-your-customer process through customer’s risk preference

5-1-2-1-6. Asset & Liabilities Management, Risk Management and Funding

@ To enhance control and coordination between asset and liability so as to be consistent on management and effective
monitor risk on exposure.

@ To tightly control source of fund and the tenor and interest rate of the usage so as reduce re-pricing risk and maximize
Bank’s net interest profitability and value.

@ Considering effectiveness liquidity safety and stability of fund, to build up sound asset liability mechanism makes
Bank’s risk within acceptable scope.

@ To aggressively cultivate core clients in order to get stable and cheap funding cost, and beautify liability structure.

@ To enhance ALM and gapping management in order to reduce basis risk and meet budget consistently.

@ Under the principles of stability safety and liquidity, to search for allocation of found so as to optimize fund distribution.

@ To adjust deposit structure and expand market share so as to reduce funding cost and to increase profitability and
Bank’s competition

@ To tightly monitor limits on market risk so as to get balance between risk rewards and optimize asset allocation.

@ In order to fully match JCIC lose event data on operational risk, to build up on-line reporting system is needed so as to
save human resource.

@ In order to match Pillar 2 (Basel Il) credit risk quantitative benchmark based on JCIC’s calculation, to measure 6
items of the stress testing based on concentration scenario testing (2 scenarios) and risk elements scenario testing (3
scenarios).

@ To effectively build up “operational loss data base” can be the base of procedure planning revolution.

@ To develop RCSA in order to found out main reasons and frequencies of operation risk, and develop KRI controlling
system according to internal audit external investigation and account information.

5-1-2-1-7. Administration and Human Resource Management

@ To continual execute a financial curriculum of the profession training, and promote employee’s professional ability

@ To reduce cost on staffs and properly adjust internal organization, and at the same time hire inter-bank players with
stronger business capability and increase ratio of external sales.

@ To continual construct E-personnel system and simplify human resource management process

5-1-2-1-8. Credit Card Business

@ Following head office’s policy and Visa’s marketing activities and designing feedback project and credit card events to
strengthen growth on consumer banking business.

@ To set credit card incentives and adjusting credit card promotion target through staffs’ sailing.

@ To strengthen employees’ marketing ability by increasing training

@ To comply with the standards of the liability ratio (DBR < 22) and “358” monitoring policy set by competent authorities.
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5-1-2-2. Major Business Plans

In order to be “professional and high quality of community bank”, the Bank dedicates to extend stable growth on
profitability and scale. The Bank expects to offer convenient service channels and multi-financial services for local
clients in the spirit of “pursuing outstanding and putting people first”.

By cautiously review possibility to improve operational status and upgrade business scope, the Bank planned to open
new branches in Hsin-Chu district, and gradually adjust location of the channels. Also, the Bank will actively strengthen
the effectiveness of both physical and electronic internet financial service and expects to offer convenient service and
high quality of value-added so as to create win-win strategy between the Bank and client relationship.

In 2010, the Bank aims to strengthen items on risk management under the principle of “safety, liquidity, and profitability”
in order to reduce the impact on risk. Base on the prerequisite “all the business can not beyond the risk” the Bank aims
to purse long-term equilibrium and development through product localization and product mix so as to satisfy customers’
needs and to deepen relationship of local clients.

Unit: TWD thousand; %

2010 Budget

Business ltem

Amount
Average Balance of Deposits 102,100,000 95,578,330 6,521,670 6.82
Average Balance of Loans 80,000,000 74,720,312 5,279,688 7.07
Wealth Management
(Trust Amount) 5,000,000 3,835,000 1,165,000 30.38
Wealth Management
(Insurance Broker Revenue) 24,284 23,809 475 2.00

5-1-2-3. Main Business Operation Target
5-1-2-3-1. Deposits

Budgeted average deposit balance in year 2010 is TWD102,100 million which is TWD6,522 million and 6.82 % growth

respectively higher than year 2009 mainly based on:

@ Enhancing Bank’s demand deposit ratio and decrease funding cost.

@ Deepening clients’ adherence through diversified product mix and reduce funding cost through deepening relationship
and service with clients and promoting corporate and authorities’ salary accounts.

@ Strengthening Web-ATM function and introduce multiple customers’ payment platform so as to reduce on-countered
service quality.

@ Keeping simplifying operational procedure on deposit and remittance function and upgrading business unit service
quality and customers’ satisfaction in order to reduce Bank’s operational cost.

5-1-2-3-2. Loans

Budgeted year 2010 average lending balance is TWD80,000 million which is TWD5,280 million and 7.07% growth
respectively higher than year 2009. The Bank will keep tracking on NPL and on accelerating write-down on bad debt in
order to effectively lower bad debt ratio and coverage ratio. The strategies are as follows:
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@ Tightly executing standard procedure on credit and lending, accurately evaluating limits, enhancing follow-up
management on credit, and tightly monitoring funds movement and debt ratio so as to avoid or reduce loss on credit.

@ Using internal credit rating system to properly adjust rating parameters and weighting based on sufficient data base,
and concluded possible default schedule and reasons using post-lending default data base.

@ Assisting client on asset allocation to satisfy their wealth planning, and upgrading Bank’s revenue and wealth
management Dept’s target through multiple and diversified product mix.

@ The loan files met qualification of SME credit guarantee fund will apply to this scheme so as to reduce credit risk
weighting asset and to strengthen capital delinquency.

@ Planning asset and liability tailor-made investment and financial products so as to meet corporate clients’ requirement.

@ |n line with requirement of Basel 0 risk management mechanism, tightly controlling debt ratio, upgrading asset quality,
and building up systematic risk management evaluation and pricing differentiation are fulfilled in order to pursue
optimized asset mix and reasonable profit.

5-1-2-3-3. Wealth Management

In order to satisfy diversified needs from clients and further to increase fee income, the Bank has set-up its insurance

broker company and expects to strengthen product origination capability on both investment and insurance —related

products. In addition, Bank plans to recruit more financial managers so as to benefit investors and directly increase sales

revenue.

Budgeted year 2010 trust asset balance is TWD5,000 million, which is TWD1,165 million and 30.38 % growth

respectively higher than year 2009. Budgeted revenue from insurance sales in year 2010 is TWD24 million, which is

TWDO.5 million and 2.00 % growth respectively. The Followings are status of the business

@ To choose stable insurance company as the main partner accompanying by trustable products to achieve stable asset
growth.

@ To promote Wed-Bank business to clients to reduce cost on staffs and facilitate client’s order placing.

@ To actively develop new products to achieve target of product diversification.

@ To adjust income structure to balance fee income and management fee.

@ In order to make growth on both trust asset and fee income, to promote, except special purpose trust, both money
trust and real estate trust.

5-1-3. Market Analysis

Concerning domestic financial market development, M&A in financial market is booming impacted by larger financial
holding companies and foreign investors. The Bank believes that banking will keep upgrading their competition under the
monitoring of FSC. Under the signing of MOU and policy easing cross straits, possible opportunities and cooperation will
bring even more tough challenge and chances.

Given being tightly controlled on financial products and interest rate policy by local authorities, the impact on domestic
financial market could be properly alleviated. Conservative investment behavior makes strongly growth on deposit in
banking sectors, and at the same time result in thin spread given lower interest rate and market competition. Banking
sectors therefore aim to adjust ratio among business units and upgrade operation performance by re-organization and
systematic adjustment.
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In order to cope with coming operational risk, local authorities is requesting banks to strengthen financial structures
and reach higher bad-debt allowance. This might impact on short term profitability in banking sectors but expect to
have a stable progress in the long run on market operation. Facing quick-changing financial market, the Bank will keep
strengthening operational quality, internal control and risk management with long-run target to transform as a national
bank. Top managers believe that the Bank is capable of expanding its advantage on consumer banking business
through all staffs’” efforts. And the Bank will still keep in a stable and conservative growth path and strategy taking into
account the benefit of our customers, shareholders and staffs so as to maintain asset quality and profitability of the Bank.

5-1-4 Financial Commodity Research and Development Overview

5-1-4-1. Major Financial Product and New-established Units in Recent 2 Years
@ Scale of Major Financial Product: Please refer to this annual report part 5: Business Operation

@ New-established Units
& SDec. 16, 2008: Relocated Xinzhuang branch
& Jul. 2008: Established subsidiary “COTA Bank Insurance Broker Co., Ltd.”
& Apr. 1, 2009: Set up Risk Management Center

5-1-4-2. Expenditure and result of Financial Products Research and Development in Recent 2 years
5-1-4-2-1. Expenditure and result of Financial Products Research and Development in Recent 2 years

@ Expenditure and result of Financial Products Research and Development in recent 2 years. Year 2008: TWD4,172
thousand ; Year 2009: TWD1,969 thousand

@ Cooperating with VISA international organizations sponsoring 2008 Beijing Olympic Games, issued the “Beijing 2008
Olympic Games” Visa pay-wave Inductive Platinum Card.

@ Self-developed credit card accounting system, PC asset management system, consumer banking center documenting
system, electronic check clearing system, and personnel leave/absence system.

@ Replaced and phased out TANDEM mainframe, re-designed and migrated inter-bank remittance, ATM, and chip debit
card to IBM mainframe.

@ Promoted chip debit card’s consumption debiting business.

@ Promoted internet banking functions for foreign exchange transactions.

@ Completed “cross-branch and ATM host business system” and off-site backup system, built up host-and-branch
network with “3G wireless backup system” in order to enhance information system backup and disaster contingency
capabilities.

@ Accomplished the system of XML (Extensible Markup Language) payment collecting service.

5-1-4-2-2. Financial Products Research and Development Project in the Future:

@ To construct sound risk management organizations and mechanisms to assess and monitor the efficiency of credit
risk, market risk, operational risk and liquidity risk to enhance performance and asset quality.

@ With the implementation of the new Basel II, to develop quantitative indicators of credit system, risk capital calculating
system to enhance the risk management operations.
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@ To research and develop derivative financial products to provide customer with duly advice.

@ To adjust the date-digit field for demand deposits and loans system to provide more product lines of 24 hour services.

® To scheme new system of foreign exchange products and build database of foreign exchange transactions,
strengthen risk management function to establish efficient operating platform for foreign exchange.

@ To self-develop the chop and seal identify system.

@ To self-develop corporate banking internet system.

5-1-5. Long/Short Term Business Development Plan

5-1-5-1. For our Short Term Business Development Plan, please refer to our profile of Business Plans for Year
2010.

5-1-5-2. Long Term Business Development Plan

@ To raise the ratio of demand deposit and reduce working capital cost to enhance profit.

@ To adjust the structure of loan business and promote the business scale of corporate banking and consumer banking.
® To develop the wealth management business by uplift the revenue ratio of fee income.

@ To strengthen loan business quality, lower non-performing loan and raise coverage ratio.

@ To enhance risk management system and strengthen the efficiency of risk management.

@ To constantly set up the branches countrywide and raise the value of service channels.

@ To build up IT management system and information platform to enlarge best synergy of IT system.

@ To promote internet banking business to provide time- and location- unlimited financial service.

@ To emphasize staff training and career planning to encourage employee morale and loyalty.

5-2. Human Capital

Information of Educational Background for Employees in Recent 2 Years

Up to Jan. 31, 2010

Number of Employee 1,141 1,095 1,086
Average Age 35.74 36.83 38.47
Average Seniority 9.96 11.05 12.87
PHD 0 1 1
Master 40 45 45
Structure of Education | University/College 868 842 835
Senior High School 227 203 201
Below 6 4 4
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Certificated Proficiency Tests of Employees Total (Up to Jan. 31, 2010)
Basic Proficiency Test for Bank Lending Personnel 411
Advanced Proficiency Test for Bank Lending Personnel 27
Proficiency Test for Bank Collateral Appraisal Personnel 13
Basic Proficiency Test for International Banking Personnel 224
Proficiency Test for Foreign Exchange Trading Personnel 34
Proficiency Test for Financial Planning Personnel 305
Test for Small-Medium Business Financial Staff 22
Proficiency Test for Trust Operations Personnel 612
Proficiency Test for Obligation & Debt Collection Personnel 170
Proficiency Test for Bank Internal Control and Audit Personnel 683
Proficiency Test for Financial Risk Management Personnel 2
Securities Investment Analysts 6
Senior Securities Specialist 110
Securities Specialist 90
Future Specialist 96
Securities Investment Trust & Consulting Professionals 94
Qualified Test for Bill Finance Specialist 37
Proficiency Test for Bond Specialist 17
Proficiency Test for Stock Affair Specialist 3
Basic Ability Test for Asset Securitization 4
Personal Insurance Specialist 592
Test for Life Insurance Specialist (Foreign Currency Base) — Non Investing Insurance Products 173
Investing Insurance Specialist 313
Asset Insurance Specialist 478
Personal Risk Manager 1
Financial Risk Management (FRM) 2
Accountant 1
Real Estate Broker 1
Land Registry Agent 1
Asset Insurance Agent 1
Personal Insurance Agent 1
Personal Insurance Broker 1
General English Placement Test — Advance 3
General English Placement Test — Basic 9
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5-3. Responsibility and Ethical Code

The Bank is a famous financial institution in central Taiwan, which has been set up around for 94 years. To response
for social liabilities, we set up “COTA Culture & Education Foundation” to develop the public welfare of elder persons
concern as well as be the sponsor of society welfare, arts appreciation and communities cares such as Children Creative
Drawing Contest, Day of No-Driving, Centennial Activity of Taichung Train Station etc., we pay full intention to participate
and support. In order to create higher value of bank and under the foundation of stable operation and seek for better
turning point, The Bank merged Fen yuan Credit Cooperatives, we combine the sources of both parties not only break
the limit of operation scale but also have better asset quality and ability of getting profit that earns highest value of
shareholders, employees and customers.

5-4. IT Equipment

The Bank uses IBM UNIX server for Business System, Testing System, Inter-bank Business and Utility System
separately. Furthermore, we also uses Windows server and Linux server depend on different business lines.

Up to date, our working software includes Demand Deposits System, Time Deposit System, Comprehensive Deposit
System, Bill Collection System, Financial Consultants System, Credit System, Trust Business System, Checks
Clearing System, ATM & Chip-Card System, Internet Banking System, Automatic Phone Voice Service System,
Correspondent System, Credit Checking System, Chops System, Staff Field System (including E-Document System,
Staff Management System, Personnel & Wages System, Operation Analysis System, Credit Review System,
Messaging System, Information Transmitting System, Consuming Business System, SME Banking Business System,
Wealth Management Business System, Joint-Credit MQ Information System, Teaching film Platform, Field of Staff
and Banking Business....), Accounting System, Safe System, Foreign Exchange System (DBU and OBU), Credit
Card System etc.

The new development for Insurance Broker System of The Bank has been working from Oct. 2009. Meanwhile, the
Bank internet banking system for foreign exchange transactions also been finished and decide to work online from Mar.
2010.

The Bank uses Mirror Disks to protect all transactions data completely and keeps duplicates of disc and magnetic
film every working day also for CD-ROM periodically. To enhance secure transactions, we set up strictly control and
management of Internet banking platform. Furthermore, we dispose another control room and backup system to prevent
any damage from disaster.
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5-5. Labor-Management Relationship

5-5-1. To stabilize the quality of staff life and improve the working efficiency, the Bank takes
care of the welfare for staff with regard to give birth, marriage and funeral events,
medical treatment and accidents.

5-5-1-1. Group Insurance

In accordance with laws and regulations, the Bank applies Labor Insurance and National Health Insurance for all staff.
We will give cash and medical payment through Bureau of Labor Insurance and Bureau of National Health Insurance
separately if any accident caused. Moreover, we cover accident insurance with Shin Kong Life for all staff.

5-5-1-2. Bonus

Based on revenue performance, the Bank provides extra bonus at Lunar New Year, Dragon Boat Festival and Mid-
Autumn Festival each year. The net earnings by fix ratio are assigned to be bonus for staff with good performance after
covering prior years’ deficits, income tax, legal reserves and distribute dividends.

5-5-1-3. Incentive Interest Rate
The Bank provides favorable interest rate of deposits or loans for all staff.
5-5-1-4. Security and Hygiene

To prevent occupational disaster and ensure staff health, the Bank takes care of security and hygiene in accordance with
related laws of worker safety sanitation.

5-5-1-5. Staff Proficiency Training
To enhance the level of our employee of profession, we are holding training courses and professional lessons.

The Bank’s pension fund is pursuant to old-version and updated version which based on Labor Law for “Staff Retirement
Plan”. The benefit payments and credits suit separately by the above-mentioned plans and based on the years of
service and final salary. In accordance with Labor Law, we will calculate 15% of total salaried employees by month
(exclude appointed managerial employee) to be retirement payment that was deposited in the pension account in the
Bank of Taiwan. We have another account for appointed management that calculated 8% of their salary each month.
Till end of Jan. 2010, under the survey of all employees, there are 432 staff (39.78% of employees) choosing the old
version or didn’'t make decision temporarily, 654 staff (60.22% of employees) choosing new version. The Bank has no
significant argument between employee and employer at present.

5-5-2. Damage from Argument between Labor and Capital in Recent 2 Years

All personnel management and staff welfares of the Bank are conformed to Labor Law. We retain agreeable labor-
capital relationship and never suffered damage from arguments and wish so for future.
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5-6. Major Contracts

Nature of Contract Concern Party Contractual Period Major Content

To enhance protection of customer

Deposit Insurance Contract Central Deposit Insurance Corp. | Engaged on Aug. 15, 1995 deposits

1. Staff unfaithful behavior

2. Asset of branches

3. Asset in transit

Bank Comprehensive Insurance | Chung kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. | From Apr. 1, 2009 to Apr. 1, 2010 | 4. Forged drafts and securities
5. Forged cash

6. Damage of equipment

7. Fault of securities or contracts

5-7. Apply for Securitization and Related Information in Recent Year:
None

52 \



oos /4 53



‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

6. Financial Status

6-1. Summarized Balance Sheet and Income Statement over the
Past Five Years

Balance Sheet .
Unit: TWD thousand

Financial data during recent 5 years

Descriptions

g:;;‘sf\f‘vftﬁ equivalerts, due from banks, 26,435,656 19,369,246 7,268,991 16,566,863 14,264,262

E?:J;I'fmﬁegf easred atair value 737,002 1,474,982 605,084 476,169 190,835

Sg{‘eismi)”n‘{ il purchased under esale 797,105 1,935,909 1,397,851 2184610

Available-for-sale financial assets 1,934,258 1,750,932 1,268,543 889,701 509,130

Bank draft, discounts and Loans 75,527,272 78,388,068 80,400,663 80,526,411 67,785,961

Receivables 469,463 723,584 844,029 1,225,766 1,695,543

Held-to -maturity financial assets 1,394,552 440,288 7,210,231 1,219,801 114,480

Investments under equity method 6,313 5,606

Fixed assets 1,307,502 1,343,527 2,096,518 1,430,028 1,017,724

Goodwill 166,205 169,572 170,406 154,027

Other financial assets 381,967 621,515 598,863 197,571 212,000

Other assets 749,059 819,727 665,670 1,368,801 1,280,065

Total Assets 109,109,249 105,904,152 103,064,907 105,452,989 89,254,610

Due to Central bank and other banks 17,372 42,560 424,020 662,901 407,993

Deposits & remittance 100,852,795 97,454,023 93,632,443 95,736,553 82,581,945

EPSJ];t:aL:g‘ﬁllg:izs?easured at fair value 173 1,004 270 311

Bonds and bills purchased under

repurchased agreements receivables

Subordinate financial debentures 2,498,773 2,497,792 2,496,811 2,495,830

Accrued pension liability 57,729 69,227 163,633 173,728 143,785

Other liabilities 1,001,159 1,207,894 1,043,864 1,073,071 814,341

Total liabilties Before allocation 104,428,001 101,272,500 97,761,041 100,142,394 83,948,064
After allocation (Note) 101,272,500 97,802,321 100,177,905 84,030,164

Common stock 3,680,451 3,680,451 3,555,991 3,431,904 3,337,341

Capital reserve 878,099 1,199,457 1,323,875 1,511,256 1,511,202

Retained Before allocation 31,010 (321,358) 361,446 367,435 458,003

earnings After allocation (Note) (321,358) 320,166 327,953 281,340

Unrealized gains on financial instruments 24,270 5,231 5,616 40,377

Cumulative translation adjustment 124 577 (59) 10

Other shareholder’s equity 67,294 67,294 56,997 56,268

Total Shareholders’ | Before allocation 4,681,248 4,631,652 5,303,866 5,310,595 5,306,546

equity After allocation (Note) 4,631,652 5,262,586 5,275,084 5,224,446

Note: The earnings distribution for 2009 hasn't been approved by the 2010 Shareholders’ General Meeting.
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Concise Income Statement ,
Unit: TWD thousand

Descriptions Q

Financial data during recent 5 years

Net interest income 1,341,353 1,624,219 1,579,358 1,482,332 1,319,527
Other net interest income 427,550 (194,483) 448,140 520,725 529,832
Bad debt expense 428,213 678,683 610,366 612,984 295,151
Operating expense 1,279,361 1,446,034 1,340,924 1,314,820 1,247,633
incorma fom continuing operations before 61,329 (694,981) 76,208 75,253 306,575
:Qggmg tf;‘)’(g‘sco"“””ing operations after 31,010 (641,524) 62,854 47,523 254,340
Gain(loss) from discontinuing operations

(after income taxes)

Extraordinary gain or loss (after income taxes)

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting 9.211

principle Net income (after income taxes) ’

Net income 31,010 (641,524) 62,854 56,734 254,340
Earnings per share 0.08 (1.74) 0.18 0.17 0.76

1. Certified public accountants:
Chuan-Chuan Wu and Jun-Man Chen for 2005~2006,
Jun-Man Chen and Yuan-Chen Mei for 2007.
Jun-Man Chen and Shi-Hua Guo for 2008~2009.

2. Opinions: no retained opinion for 2005, modified no retained opinion for 2006~2007 and no retained opinion for 2008~2009.

6-2. Analysis on Major Financial Ratios for Recent Five Years

Unit: TWD thousand; %
Financial analysis during recent 5 years

Descriptions
Loans to deposits ratio (%) 75.76 81.48 86.63 84.79 82.48
Overdue loan ratio (%) 2.13 2.68 2.92 2.95 2.78
Interest expense to average balance of deposits ratio (%) 1.08 1.97 1.79 1.57 1.31
82;;?:;&3 Interest income to average balance of loans ratio (%) 3.09 4.37 4.03 3.86 3.56
Total assets turnover (times) 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02
Average operating revenue per employee 2.623 3,392 3,226 3,105 3,026
Average earnings per employee 28 (562) 54 51 265
Return on first capital type assets (%) 1.42 (14.97) 1.53 1.49 6.07
ROA (%) 0.03 (0.61) 0.06 0.06 0.30
Profitability | ROE (%) 0.67 (12.91) 1.18 1.07 4.88
Net income ratio (%) 1.75 (44.87) 3.10 2.83 13.75
EPS (loss) 0.08 (1.74) 0.18 0.17 0.76
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Financial analysis during recent 5 years

Descriptions

Financial | Ratio of liabilities to assets 95.71 95.63 94.85 94.96 94.05
structure | Ratio of fix assets to shareholder’s equity 28.08 29.01 39.53 26.93 19.18
Growth | Asset growth rate (%) 3.03 2.75 (2.26) 18.15 11.73
Rate | profitability growth rate (%) 108.82 | (1011.95) (9.77) (72.45) 9.41
Cash flow ratio 231.68 N/A 92.21 45.41 52.69

Cash flow | Cash flow adequacy ratio 1074.23 587.38 563.23 440.41 376.45

Ratio of cash flow for operating to cash flow from investing (24.11) N/A 159.72 (7.33) (7.07)

Liquid Reserves Ratio (%) 22.24 15.85 11.19 13.06 11.24
Secured Loans to Related Parties 825,449 882,539 849,177 870,980 870,323
Secured Loans to Related Parties to Total Outstanding Loans Ratio (%) 1.06 1.09 1.03 1.06 1.25
Market share of assets (%) 0.27 0.26 0.31 0.33 0.29

Operation | Market share of net worth (%) 0.20 0.22 0.27 0.28 0.28
Scale | Market share of deposits (%) 0.35 0.36 0.44 045 0.41
Market share of loan (%) 0.41 0.43 0.45 0.46 0.40

1. The overdue loan ratio decreased by 21% mainly results from write-off bad debt and enhancement of asset quality.

2. The deposit interest and loan interest drop by 45% and 29% of interest expense to average balance of deposits ratio and interest income to average balance of
loans ratio mainly result from falling of deposits and loans interest.

3. The total assets turnover increased by100% mainly results from the inferior investment profits and recognition of TWD4,600 million assets impairment loss.

4. Average operating revenue per employee decreased by 23% mainly results from interest income reducing.

5. The average earnings per employee increased by 105%, ROA increased by 105%, ROE increased by 105%, net income ratio increased by 104% and EPS
increased by 105% mainly result from inferior investment profits and recognition of assets impairment loss in 2008 so as to increase TWD700 million of net income
in 2009.

6. The return on first capital assets increased by 109% and profitability growth rate increased by 111% due to loss in 2008 and pre-tax income increased by 7,600
million in 2009.

7. Cash flow adequacy ratio increase mainly results from operating cash flow increase and the capital expenditure and the dividend decrease in 2009.

8. Liquid Reserves Ratio increased by 40% results from increasing of holding investment position.

Note:
1. Operating ability
(1) Ratio of loans to deposits = Total loans / deposits
(2) Ratio of overdue = (Loans Overdue + Other Overdue) / Total Loans
(3) Ratio of interest Cost to Annual Average Deposits = interest Cost /Annual Average Deposits
(4) Ratio of interest income to Annual Average Loans Outstanding = Interest Income / Annual Average Loans Outstanding
(5) Total Assets Turnover = Net Operating Revenue / Total Assets
(6) Average Operation Revenue per Employee = Net Operating Revenue / Number of Employees
(7) Average Profit per Employee = After-tax Income / Total Number of Employees

2. Profitability
1) Return on Tier | Capital = Pretax Earnings or Losses / Total Average Tier | Capital
2) Return on Assets = Net Income / Average of Total Assets
3) Return on Shareholders’ Equity = Net income / Average of Total Shareholders’ Equities
4) Ratio of Net Income = Net Income / Total Revenue
)

(
(
(
(
(5) Earning per Share = (Net Income — Preferred stock Dividend) /Average Weighted Outstanding Stock
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3. Financial Structure
(1) Ratio of Liabilities to Assets = Liabilities / Total Assets
(2) Ratio of Fix Assets to Shareholders’ Equity = Fix Assets / Shareholders’ Equities

4. Growth Rate
(1) Asset Growth Rate = (Total Assets of the Year-Total Assets of Previous Year)/Total Assets of Previous Year
(2) Profit Growth Rate=(Pretax Earnings or Losses of the Year-Before-tax Earnings or Losses of Previous Year)/
Pretax Earnings or Losses of Previous Year

5. Cash Flow

(1) Ratio of Cash Flow= Net cash flow from business activities /(call loans and overdrafts from banks + commercial
paper payable +financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss + bonds and bills sold under
repurchase agreement + current portion of payables)

(2) Ratio of Cash Flow Adequacy = Net cash flow from business activities for the past five years/ (capital expenditures
+ cash dividends) for the past five years

(3) Ratio of Cash Flow for operating to cash flow from investing = Net cash flow from business activities/ Net cash flow
from investing activities

6. Liquidity Reserves Ratio= Liquid Assets Stipulated by CBC/Reserves Appropriated for various Types of Deposits

7. Operating Scale
(1) Market Share of Asset= Total Asset/Total Asset of the major financial institutions
(2) Market Share of Net Worth= Net Worth/Total Asset of the major financial institutions
(3) Market Share of Deposit= Total Deposit/Total Asset of the major financial institutions
(4) Market Share of Loan= Total Loan/Total Asset of the major financial institutions

Unit: TWD thousand; %

Descriptions

Common Stocks 3,680,451 | 3,680,451 | 3,555,991 | 3,431,904 | 3,337,341
Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stocks

Non-Cumulative Subordinated Debts Without
Maturity Dates

Advanced Receipts For Capital Stocks

Capital Surplus(apart from fixed asset

e 878,099 | 1,199,457 | 1,323,875 | 1,443,962 | 1,443,908
appreciation surplus)

Net Tier| Legal Reserves - 313,783 294,927 277,907 201,605
Capital Capital | Special Reserves
Retained Earnings 31,010 (635,140) 66,519 60,167 256,398
Minority Interests
Other of Equity 124 577 (10,356) 29,361
Minus: Goodwill 154,027 154,027 154,027 154,027
Minus: Non-amortization of NPL Disposal Loss
Minus: Others 95,711 102,248 97,446 120,492 96,910
Total Tier | 4,339,946 | 4,302,853 | 4,979,483 | 4,968,782 | 5,142,342
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Capital Adequacy Ratio of Recent Five Year

Perpetual Cumulative Preferred Stocks
Cumulative Subordinated Debts Without
Maturity Dates
Fixed Asset Appreciation Surplus 67,294 67,294 67,294 67,294 67,294
. . . . .
i?/ zﬁl ;ka) ILeJ-r}(r)?iilaZIZd Gain of Financial Assets in 10.921 2354 2507
Convertible Bonds
Tier |l Operating Reserves and Loan Loss Provision 98,404 13,925 1,284 2,212 15,095
Capital Long-term Subordinated Debts 2,169,973 | 2,151,427 | 2,489,741 2,500,000
Net Non-perpetual Preferred Stocks
Capital The Average of Non-cumulative Perpetual
Preferred Stocks and Non-cumulative
Subordinated Debts Without a Maturity Date
Exceed 15% of Total Tier | Capital
Minus: Others 95,710 102,247 97,446 120,491 96,910
Total Tier Il 2,250,882 | 2,132,753 2,463,400 | 2,449,015 (14,521)
Short-term Subordinated Debts
Tier Il
Capital | Non-perpetual Preferred Stocks
Total Tier Il
Net Capital 6,590,828 | 6,435,606 | 7,442,883 | 7.417.797 | 5.127.821
Standardized Approach 52,781,703 | 54,553,316 | 58,639,906 | 62,652,619 | 53,197,335
Credit Risk | Internal-rating-based Approach
Securitization 13,977
Total Basic Indicator Approach 3,244,938 | 3,346,650 | 3,563,313
W%i?:l(ted Opeé?st:(onal Standardized Approach / Alternative Approach
Assets Advanced Measurement Approach
.| Standardized Approach 1,938,363 | 2,891,763 | 2,257,538 | 2,306,750 | 1,261,025
Market Risk
Internal Model Approach
Total Risk-weighted Assets 57,978,981 | 60,791,729 | 64,460,757 | 64,959,369 | 54,458,360
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.37 10.59 11.55 11.42 9.42
Tier | Capital to Risk Assets Ratio 7.49 7.08 7.72 7.65 9.44
Tier Il Capital to Risk Assets Ratio 3.88 3.51 3.82 3.77 (0.03)
Tier Il Capital to Risk Assets Ratio
Common Shares Equity to Total Assets Ratio 3.37 3.48 3.45 3.25 3.74
Note:

1. Net Capital Base = Tier | Capital +Tier Il Capital + Tier Ill Capital

2. Total Weighted Risk Asset = Credit Risk Weighted Risk Asset + (Operational Risk + Market Risk) Capital Requirement x 12.5
3. Capital Adequacy Ratio = Net Capital Base / Total Risk Asset

4. Ratio of Tier | Capital to Risk Asset = Tier | Capital / Total Risk Asset

5. Ratio of Tier Il Capital to Risk Asset = Tier Il Capital / Total Risk Asset

6. Ratio of Tier Il Capital to Risk Asset = Tier Ill Capital / Total Risk Asset

7. Ratio of Common Share Equity to Total Asset = Common Share Equity / Total Asset
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6-3 Supervisorsl/Audit Report for Latest Year

COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.,
Supervisor’s Audit Report for Year 2009

Mar. 19, 2010

To: Shareholders’ General Meeting of Year 2010
The Business Report, Financial Statement, Consolidated Financial Statement and Earning
Distribution of Fiscal 2009, worked out and submitted by COTA Bank board of directors have

been duly audited by KPMG Certified Public Accountants, and further verified by us. This
Report duly submitted in accordance with Article 219 of the Company Law.

Standing Supervisor : Lien- Kui Wang

Supervisor . Dhe-Chin Lai
Supervisor . Guo-Zhao Xiao
Supervisor : Zhuang-Tai Wang
Supervisor . Yong-Zhi Wang
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COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008
(With Auditors’ Report Thereon)

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the balance sheets of COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the Company) as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
Republic of China Guidelines for Certified Public Accountants’ Examinations and Reports on
Financial Statements for Financial Institutions. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with the
“Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Bank,” “Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,” the related financial accounting standards
of the “Business Entity Accounting Act” and of the “Regulation on Business Entity Accounting
Handling,” and Republic of China generally accepted accounting principles.

KpMG

February 22, 2010

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not
those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of, the
English and Chinese language auditors’ report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2009 and 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Change of
2009 2008 percentage
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 4) $ 1,293,477 2,004,880 (35)
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to other banks (note 5) 25,142,179 17,364,366 45
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (note 6) 737,002 1,474,982 (50)
Bonds and bills purchased under resale agreements - 797,105 (100)
Receivables, net (notes 7 and 26) 469,463 723,584 (35)
Loans, net (note 8) 75,527,272 78,388,068 (4)
Available-for-sale financial assets, net (notes 9 and 27) 1,934,258 1,750,932 10
Held-to-maturity financial assets, net (notes 10 and 27) 1,394,552 440,288 217
Long-term investments under equity method (note 11) 6,313 5,606 13
Other financial assets (note 12) 381,967 621,515 (39)
Premises and equipment, net (note 13) 1,307,502 1,343,527 (3)
Intangible assets (note 14) 166,205 169,572 2)
Deferred income tax assets (note 23) 147,127 179,026 (18)
Other assets (note 15) 601,932 640,701 (6)
Total Assets $ 109,109,249 105,904,152 3
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Due to the Central Bank and other banks (note 16) $17,372 42,560 (59)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (note 17) 173 1,004 (83)
Payables (note 18) 543,031 742,021 (27)
Deposits and remittances (note 19) 100,852,795 97,454,023 3
Subordinate financial debentures (note 20) 2,498,773 2,497,792 -
Accrued pension liability (note 21) 57,729 69,227 (17)
Other liabilities(note 14) 458,128 465,873 2)
Total liabilities 104,428,001 101,272,500 3
Stockholders’ equity (note 22):
Common stock 3,680,451 3,680,451 -
Capital reserve 878,099 1,199,457 (27)
Retained earnings:
Statutory reserve - 313,783 (100)
Undistributed earnings (Accumulated deficit) 31,010 (635,141) (105)
31,010 (321,358) (110)
Equity adjustments
Land revaluation increments (note 13) 67,294 67,294 -
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 124 577 (79)
Unrealized gains on financial instruments 24,270 5,231 364
91,688 73,102 25
Total stockholders’ equity 4,681,248 4,631,652 1
Commitments and contingencies (note 28)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 109,109,249 105,904,152 3

See accompanying notes ro financial statements.
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COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for earning per share)

‘:DTF. Commercial Bank

Change of
2009 2008 percentage
Interest income (note 26) $ 2,409,886 3,504,369 (31)
Less: interest expense (note 26) 1,068,533 1,880,150 (43)
Net interest income 1,341,353 1,624,219 (17)
Non-interest income, net
Service fees income, net (note 26) 233,952 253,425 (8)
Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value through profit
and loss 85,454 (66,208) 229
Realized gain on available-for-sale financial assets 5,136
Investment income recognized under equity method (note 11) 1,247 606 106
Foreign exchange gains, net 5,708 23,965 (76)
Reversal of impairment loss (Impairment loss) (notes 12 and 15) 50,865 (458,891) (111)
Other non-interest income, net 45,188 52,620 (14)
Net revenue 1,768,903 1,429,736 24
Bad debt expense (note 8) 428,213 678,683 (37)
Operating expense:
Personnel expenses 865,209 990,659 (13)
Depreciation and amortization expenses(note 14) 61,396 65,634 (6)
Other general and administrative expense 352,756 389,741 9)
Total operating expense 1,279,361 1,446,034 (12)
Income (Loss) before income taxes 61,329 (694,981) 109
Income tax expense (benefit) (note 23) 30,319 (53,457) 157
Net income (loss) $ 31,010 (641,524) 105
2009 2008
Before After Before After
income tax income tax income tax income tax
Basic Earning per Share (in NTD) (note 24) $_0.17 0.08 (1.89) (1.74)
Diluted Earning Per Share $_0.17 0.08 (1.89) _(1.74)

See accompanying notes ro financial statements.
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COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cumulative
foreign Unrealized
Retained earnings Land currency gains
Common Capital Statutory  Undistributed revaluation  translation  on financial Unrecognized
stock reserve reserve earnings  increments  adjustments instruments pension cost Total
(Accumulated
Deficit)

Balance as of January 1, 2008 $3,555,991 1,323,875 294,927 66,519 67,294 (59) (10,297) 5,303,866
Appropriation and distribution of 2007

earnings:

Statutory reserve - - 18,856 (18,856)

Remuneration to directors and

supervisors - - - (1,320) - - - - (1,320)

Employee profit - - (4,400) - - - - (4,400)

Cash dividends - - - (35,560) - - - - (35,560)
Capital reserve capitalized 124,460  (124,460)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale

financial assets - - - - - - (385) - (385)
Changes in cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments - - - - - 636 - - 636
Unrecognized pension cost - - - - - - - 10,297 10,297
Miscellaneous overpayment by

shareholders - 42 - - - - - - 42
Net loss for 2008 - - - (641,524) - - - - (641,524)
Balance as of December 31, 2008 3,680,451 1,199,457 313,783  (635,141) 67,294 577 5,231 - 4,631,652
Appropriation and distribution of 2008

earnings:

Statutory reserve used to absorb

losses in prior years - (313,783) 313,783
Capital reserve used to absorb losses in

prior years - (321,358) - 321,358
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

financial assets - - - - - - 19,039 - 19,039
Changes in cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments - - - - - (453) - - (453)
Net Income for 2009 - - - 31,010 - - - - 31,010
Balance as of December 31, 2009 $3,680,451 _ 878,099 - 31,010 67,294 124 24,270 - 4,681,248

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COTA Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for loan losses and other reserves
Investment income recognized under equity method
Accrued pension cost
Amortization of discount on subordinate financial debentures
Impairment loss (Reversal of impairment loss)
Loss (gain) on disposal of properties and idle assets, net
Gain on disposal of foreclosed properties, net
Decrease (increase ) in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Increase (decrease ) in financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in receivables
Decrease (increase) in deferred income tax asset
Decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in payables
Pension payment
Increase (decrease )in other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in due from the Central Bank and call loans to other banks
Decrease in loans
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets
Decrease (increase) in held-to-maturity financial assets
Decrease in bonds and bills purchased under resale agreements
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets
Increase in long-term investment under equity method
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of properties and idle assets
Increase in deferred expense
Purchase of computer software
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties
Decrease in other assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in due to the Central Bank and other banks
Increase in deposits and remittances
Increase (decrease ) in other liabilities
Odd lot trading to overpay
Cash dividends paid
Remuneration to directors and supervisors
Employee profit paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash e